


Greetings!

With immense honor and heartfelt gratitude, | extend to you our annual
report, encapsulating the financial year concluding on March 31, 2023. In
comparison to the preceding year, this year has borne witness to our
remarkable team reaching out to double the number of individuals,
facilitating over 130 outreach programs and experiencing a 50% surge in
the hours generously contributed by our young students towards aiding the
animals of Singapore.

What more profound way to manifest the care and compassion Singapore's
residents harbour for our animal companions than to observe a remarkable
70% escalation in volunteer hours throughout this financial year. It is with
deep gratitude that we acknowledge the unwavering support and
benevolence emanating from individuals, school students, corporate
entities, and our diverse array of partners, without whom this progress
would not have been possible.

Unsurprisingly, our leadership has looked into a pressing and important
concern in sustaining the animal protection movement - the people of the
organisation. As we bring you the programme updates, our CEOs have
embarked on a transformative journey, prioritising the growth and
engagement of the dedicated staff and volunteers at ACRES. This
strategic focus aims to fortify our collective efforts in advocating for the
welfare of animals, ensuring a resounding impact.

| am confident that with your continued support, we can continue to
contribute to creating a compassionate society for all lives.

Sincerely,

ASSOC PROF DR UMAPATHI THIRUGNANAM

ACRES President






ACRES (Animal Concerns Research & Education Society) is a pioneering Singapore-
based charity and Institution of Public Character (UEN TOISSO121K), founded by
Singaporeans in 2001 with the aim of ending animal cruelty. ACRES was registered as a
society on 24th May 2001 (Registration No.: 0176/2001). It was registered under the
Charities Act on Tlith January 2005 (Registration No.: 1849) and registered as an
Institution of Public Character on Ist June 2007 (Registration no. IPC000559).

. )

A world where animals are treated with compassion and respect.

. )

To create a caring and socially responsible society where animals are treated as sentient
beings.

. )

To drive forward a collaborative and sustainable animal protection movement in Asia.

. J

* To foster respect and compassion for all animals.

* To improve the living conditions and welfare of animals in captivity.

* To educate people on lifestyle choices which do not involve the abuse of animals and
which are environment-friendly.

L ACRES is an animal protection organisation, driven by our concern for

B8, animals. We adopt a Scientific, Creative, Practical and Positive approach to |

: ‘"""“; educate the public, empowering them with knowledge to make a positive

y  difference for animals. We strongly believe in promoting community B

” f involvement in addressing animal protection issues and in building
| partnerships with all related bodies and the authorities to improve animal

welfare. PSP,
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EXECUTIVE BOARD

EXECUTIVE BOARD
MEMBERS & THEIR
OCCUPATION

A/P Umapathi Thirugnanam
Associate Professor, Neurologist

Satya Tiwari
Obstetrician & Gynaecologist

Noelle Seet
Technology & Privacy Counsel

Andrew Tay
Master Nature Educator

Alpana Ahuja
lllustrator

Naomi Clark-Shen
Sharks and Rays Researcher

POSITION & DATE OF
APPOINTMENT

President
24 January 2017

Vice-President
29 March 2023

Treasurer
07 February 2023

Secretary
11 January 2019

Committee Member
06 January 2016

Committee Member
27 January 2023

There are no paid staff members who are close members of the family of the above
directors and members.

Seven meetings were conducted for this financial year on 12 Apr, 21 Jul, 20 Sep, 1st Dec of
2022 and T7th Jan, 7th Feb and 29th Mar of 2023. All meetings were held via zoom except
one. All meetings except one, had full attendance. Absent with apologies was the treasurer
in one (in February 2023) of the seven meetings.



EXECUTIVE BOARD

POSITION &
DATE OF
DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT MONTHLY SALARY

Anbarasi Boopal Co-CEOQ (Advocacy) $4,110
01 January 2021

Kalaivanan S/0 Balakrishnan Co-CEO (Wildlife Rescue)  $4,240
01 January 2021

ACRES's banker is Overseas Chinese Banking Corporation (OCBC), and we do not have an appointed
lawyer at the moment.


Anbarasi Boopal

Anbarasi Boopal
ACRES’s banker is Overseas Chinese Banking Corporation (OCBC), and we do not have an appointed lawyer at the moment.


The ACRES Wildlife Rescue Centre
(AWRC), the first of its kind in
Singapore, serves as a safe haven for
animals affected by the illegal wildlife
trade. Within this premises, wildlife
abandoned or discarded due to the
illicit exotic pet industry receive care
and rehabilitation, finding solace
among others of their species in
natural-like habitats. Our primary goal
is to reunite them with their native
homes whenever feasible.

Our experienced Wildlife Rescue
Team is at the ready round the clock
24 hours a day, 365 days a year,
stepping in to assist distressed
wildlife.  This aid extends to
abandoned exotic wildlife as well as
native wildlife grappling with injuries,

entrapment, or displacement.

Images (Top to bottom) A black-naped oriole under rehabilitation; a native heron being treated for
concussion and a coral snake rescued from a glue trap laid for rodent control

Between Ist April 2022 and 3lst March 2023, a total of 14,876 calls were
handled by our 24-hour hotline (97837782) from the members of public.
3,139 wild animals were rescued- including animals from the illegal exotic
pet trade (who are frequently found abandoned in public areas), as well
as injured, trapped or displaced native wild animals. A total of over 1,200
native wild animals were successfully released back into the wild.



Between Ist April 2022 and 3lst March
2023, ACRES rescued several native
wildlife of the following species:
Reptiles: Malayan box turtle, Asiatic
soft-shelled turtle, water monitor lizard,
clouded monitor lizard, King cobra,
reticulated python, elegant bronzeback,
striped bronzeback, oriental whip snake,
striped kukri snake, Wagler's pit viper,
mangrove viper, mangrove cat snake,
equatorial spitting cobra, paradise tree
snake, common wolf snake, dog-faced
water snake, twin-barred tree snake,
brahminy blind snake, dog-toothed cat
snake, common Malayan racer, banded
Malayan coral snake, Equatorial spitting
cobra, green crested lizard;

Two black-naped oriole fledglings (top)
hand-raised to adulthood (bottom) in
April 2022, with all necessary life skills
before release into the wild

Birds: Rock pigeon, spotted dove, cinnamon bittern, house crow, Eurasian

tree sparrow, oriental pied hornbill, zebra dove, yellow bittern, black-naped

oriole, tailor bird, olive-backed sunbird, collared kingfisher, common

kingfisher, oriental dwarf kingfisher, stork-billed kingfisher, grey heron, large-

tailed nightjar, barn owl, oriental scops owl, honey buzzard, spotted wood

owl, changeable hawk eagle, sparrow hawk, crested goshawk, mangrove

pitta, blue-winged pitta, pink-necked green pigeon, little green pigeon,

yellow-vented bulbul, peregrine falcon, night heron, common mynah, white-

vented mynah, crested-serpent eagle, white-breasted waterhen and more

species.
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Rehabilitating and hand-
raising native mammals
involve prolonged care in
captivity: These two baby
civets rescued from two
different cases in June 2022,
were integrated and
rehabilitated for 3 months,
before release in our wild
habitats in Singapore.

Mammals: Plantain squirrel, dog-faced fruit bat, yellow house bat,
bamboo bats, common tree shrew, Sunda pangolin, long-tailed macaque,
banded langur, smooth-coated otfter, masked palm civet, Malayan colugo,
sambar deer and common palm civet.

Sadly, not ever wild animals whom we rescue survive. Some are so badly
injured or suffering from such severe shock that they pass away. This year,

we successtully released over 1,200 rescued wild animals were released
back to the wild.



NATIVE

WILDLIFE

Trends in need for ACRES's need for wildlife rescue services
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ACREs observed a drop by 20% in the number of calls handled by our
hotline in this financial year. Even though last FY was the unusually
highest ever in the organisation’s history, this drop can be due to factors
such as NParks" 24-hour hotline handling wildlife-related situations.

ACRES successfully completed the tenure of the work as a contractor to
NParks for wildlife management services in September 2022, which
involved activations to remove wildlife such as snakes, civets and bats by
NParks. ACRES's bids did not win the tender to resume this contract.

In compliance with the Wildlife Act, ACRES also submits records of
release, rescue and rehabilitated wildlife to the NParks.



In March 2022, our wildlife rescue team rescued ‘Titanium’, a peregrine
falcon who could not stand up or take off. With no visible injuries, our
veterinary team'’s assessment and x-rays revealed a metal object in the
leg. A surgery was carried out to ensure that the object was safely
removed. To our shock and surprise, it was a BB gun pellet lodged in the
leg, resulting in a fracture.

Following two week’s rest and healing, Titanium was free to be wild
again in April 2023, as we welcomed the new financial year! Titanium’s
recovery update can be watched by clicking below.

Titanium (left to right): (i) X-ray showing the BB gun pellet
lodged in the leg bone; (ii) under surgery and (iii) An unhappy
Titanium who likes to rip off the bandage during cage rest



https://www.instagram.com/reel/CcIXpD-DGlu/

In January 2023, our team was alerted to a large reticulated python

who has sought refuge on the high-hanging CNY lights on the road. As

a concerned crowd gathered, our rescue officers had to bring down the

lighting, and rescue the python safely for relocation.

Choa Chu Kang CNY lighting sought as refuge by a native
reticulated python, rescued and safely relocated by our
rescue team.

Gerald, our rescue officer working together with
construction personnel to rescue a python

Educative rescues is a
key aspect of our work,
which  goes  beyond
rescuing the animal. Our
team goes the extra mile
to talk to the personnel
on the ground,
educating them on our
native wildlife. This is not
only to raise awareness,
but also minimise
unnecessary panic from
lack of awareness and
exposure.

Ari, our rescue officer explaining to public, while
examining a rescued grounded raptor

g i ¢




KHABIB, THE WHITE-BELLIED SEA EAGLE Our heartfelt
thanks to the kind folks at Nee Soon Camp who called
for help and also named this eagle Khabib. Khabib was
rescued in shock, after he flew into a wall and crashed
from a great height.

Our veterinary team quickly stabilised Khabib with fluids
and rest. Xray revealed that Khabib suffered spinal
trauma that resulted in paralysis in both legs. Thankfully
as a young eagle, Khabib accepted food readily and
had the fighting spirit to cooperate with the
physiotherapy sessions! We are grateful for our patient
and dedicated team of wildlifevet, #vetnurse and our
caregivers who took all efforts for two months to ensure
that Khabib grew stronger and stayed wild, for release
back to the wild.

Khabib, getting fluid therapy after rescue, to
stabilise from dehyration and trauma

B
Y

Khabib, before rescue. Click
button below to watch his
full story



https://www.instagram.com/reel/CnVyLUthzMX/
https://www.instagram.com/explore/tags/kind/
https://www.instagram.com/explore/tags/neesooncamp/
https://www.instagram.com/explore/tags/khabib/
https://www.instagram.com/explore/tags/xray/
https://www.instagram.com/explore/tags/trauma/
https://www.instagram.com/explore/tags/paralysis/
https://www.instagram.com/explore/tags/eagle/
https://www.instagram.com/explore/tags/physiotherapy/
https://www.instagram.com/explore/tags/wildlifevet/
https://www.instagram.com/explore/tags/vetnurse/

SAYANG, the common palm civet was rescued as a
baby from a glue trap in February 2023. The team
recount cleaning Sayang as one of the most heart-
breaking moments. Glued feathers and fur are not only
difficult to clean the glue off from, but glue removal is
also a very stressful process overall for these poor
animals. They deserve a safe home in the wild, and have
the right to be Free To Be Wild! Glue traps are just one
of the issues, besides poisoning, abuse, illegal trade and
poor welfare that we fight to end in Singapore. Click
the watch button to watch her full story of rehabilitation
and release in June 2023.

Following glue removal, she could not be released
immediately, as Sayang was too young to survive in the
wild. So she had to be rehabilitated for about four
months before release into the wild.

It took over two weeks of cleaning and care before
all of the glue could be removed from her body.

Sayang, the young common
palm civet found on glue trap

Sayang, four months later before release back into

the wild


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=I0FA6HszIS8

April 2022: A rack pigeon
with a broken leg and a
olive-backed sunbird with
a left wing fracture in
recovery, before release
into the wild.
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December 2022: A lost
scops owl rescued from a
shoe rack in a HDB
building, rested and
released back into the
wild.

December 2022: A
stranded paradise tree
snake rescued from
Christmas tree
decorations, and a
grounded honey buzzard
under fluid therapy after

rescue.




In early 2023, ACRES worked closely
with the media to raise awareness on
the plight on the cruel and
indiscriminate glue traps. Our data
indicated that ACRES rescued at
least one wild animal from a glue trap
every day in the calendar year 2022.
This alarming rates prompted an
appeal to NParks to look into phasing
out or at least regulating the sale and

use of glue traps.

Most often, these sticky traps laid for

’ Iy lizards or rats, have the whole food
5 >~ chain trapped - a gecko or a toad or
A4
e a rat, then their predator a snake or a
:,vi"’ Ty monitor lizard too.

Glue removal is a stressful process

taking several days, and unfortunately
many of these rescued victims may
not survive.

Dec 2022: Top: A collared kingfisher rescued from a rodent glue trap. After 8 weeks of
rehabilitation, the bird was finally released back into the wild. Bottom: In February 2023, Peep, the
slaty-breasted rail bird was rescued from a glue trap and was released after 3 weeks of
rehabilitation and captive care. A shy and elusive resident breeder, this bird is not even an urban
species to be caught as a victim of a practice in urban centres.



December 2022: A spotted
dove, a gecko and a wolf
snake rescued from

glue/sticky traps.

Jan 2023: Two common
wolf snakes and a rare
banded Malayan coral

snake rescued from glue

traps.

Previous year examples of
pythons and other snakes
getting stuck to glue
traps, when they find their
prey. Without addressing
the food sources
availability, glue traps
does not address the
rodent issue.




WILDLIFE RESCUE

VOLUNT

In  this financial year, our amazing
volunteers clocked in 14,430 hours,
assisting us with the wildlife rescue shifts

and caring for the rescued wildlife housed
at ACRES Wildlife Rescue Centre.

ACRES trained another batch of
volunteers in this financial year. However,
we sadly bade farewell to our long term
volunteers Laurie and Chetna among a
few more who were moving out of
Singapore.

We are grateful for the continued
dedication and support from our current
and new batch of volunteers.

A long-term wildlife rescue volunteer and teacher Ee
Qiang examining a rescued young Malayan colugo,
during his Saturdqy day shift.

X

We bid farewell to our long-term committed volunteers
| qurie and Chetna, as they mave out of Singapore.



VETERINARY

Left: Animal Wellness Recavery Centre team learning journey visit to ACRES
Right: Veterinary student on extra-mural internship attachment, from Melbourne University
IWe are honoured to partner Animal Wellness Referral Centre and Animal Wellness
Recovery Centre, thanks to Dr Jean Paul-Ly's kindness and unwavering support. The
partnership is to support veterinary care for certain animals requiring special
diagnostic facilities or treatment procedures, at a subsidised rate and fully waived
consultation fee.
the Animal Wellness REcovery Centre team of vets and
vet nurses visited and spoke to our husbandry and
~ veterinary team, sharing insights

Dr Jean Paul-Ly observing, as our veterinary team
carries out a treatment procedure for a rescued bird



RAPID RESPONSE TEAM

In August 2022, during our Supporters ge-together event, our Co-CEO Kalai
together with our supporters unveiled our brand new team called Rapid Response
Rescue Team. This retro-fitted second hand bike, is to pilot a project, to
complement current rescue efforts carried out by a single van and two rescue
officers

For cases, that require emergency attention and can be handled by a single person,
the bike rider will respond and handle the situation until help arrives.




EXOTIC WILDLIFE

[ |

The ACRES Wildlife Rescue Centre (AWRC) provides a safe haven for rescued
exotic wild animals from the illegal wildlife trade in Singapore. A
considerable number of these animals are discovered abandoned in public
spaces, their survival prospects in Singapore's environment being minimal due
to their lack of adaptation. Releasing them to be free in Singapore is
detrimental not only to their well-being but also to the native wildlife and
habitats. The presence of introduced exotic species poses a significant
threat, leading to competition with native species for food and the potential
intfroduction of foreign diseases, resulting in detrimental imbalances within
the native ecosystem.

Since the Covid-19 restrictions were being lifted during this period, efforts to
resume repatriation begun in this financial year, resulting in successful
repatriations in the future. Consequently, we faced space constraints and
had to limit admissions of exotic wildlife, redirecting a number cases to the
National Parks Board, who had recently opened a facility to house trafficked
wildlife in Singapore.

Leonard, the leopard tortoise from previous year,
continued to face health issues, requiring veterinary
care. Native to Africa, these tortoises are often
smuggled to be sold/kept as pets for their beautiful
shell.

One of our African ball python receiving care to
prevent possibilities of eye infections. Often,
these animals come with underlying health

conditions due to sub-optimal care.



EXOTIC WILDLIFE

i
‘Our outdoor sanctuary and indoor quarantine space, house over 110 exotic
wild animals from the illegal wildlife trade. Providing care for them not only
includes feeding, cleaning enclosures - but also having a rigorous enrichment

and preventive veterinary care in place.

This entails having a complete diet plan, supplement routine, preventive care
such as periodic weighing, daily behavioural monitoring, daily
bowel/urination monitoring and enrichment schedule for both physical and
mental well-being of these animals. The enclosures are also revamped
periodically.

Featured here are a couple of festive enrichment that are carried out to
share some of these programmes with our supporters. However, the daily
enrichment projects have a lot more engagement, meaning and purpose to
stimulating their natural exploratory or foraging behaviour to best possible
level in a given space at ACRES.

Left - Sulcata tortoises, native to Africa trying to figure out their National Day dietary enrichment
Right - Christmas enrichment of 2022, which involved a salad creatively designed to be a Christmas
tree, with locally sourced wild flowers grown at ACRES. You may watch the video by clicking above.


https://www.instagram.com/reel/CmlZlcVBCIt/

FEEDBACK

Jiahui Zhou N
January 24 . @&

We want to say thank you again to ACRES for
taking the time to contact and take over the 4
day-old sunbird nesting whose parents have
1een missing. Your team responded quickly
ind transported the baby bird with profession.
1 is grateful to see that your organization treat
very life with care, regardless of the size and
writy. Hope the baby bird can grow up
Jeccessfully and fly back to the wild again
lappy Chinese New Year and wish all the bes

Y ACRES J,
|
‘ prvyani Bhutda 8 recommends ACHES: A
. . Education Society (Singapore).

We just now called the service Baplomuriih ARE &
Thank you 5o much ACRES rescue team L for saving Myna Bird

Si nce a sma | | sha ke was Spoﬂ-ed | have called ACRES when we saw critical) injured myna Bird They gave me instructid
WhatsApp to follow and keep him safe In the box with ventilation

i i we had seen improvement

In The b(]'l'hroom. The response IS after a few hours the rescue team was there

ve ry SWI'H a nd _I_he rescue hats of you guys for giving him another life

professional reached after 1
hour. He caught the snake and
also  provided the  useful
knowledge. Appreciate the fast
action. He has rescued us too.

Shirley Shi Wen, January 2023

As one can expect, we also receive feedback on our services resulting from
miscommunication during rescues or over the phone. The work we do involves tense and
emergency situations, where multiple calls are handled and the feedback provider can
be trying their best to get help as soon as possible. We try our best to make time to
address those and explain to the feedback provider.



TACKLING CRIMES

This financial year, our ACIU (Animal
Crime Investigation Unit) investigated
a total of 154 cases related to
animal cruelty and illegal wildlife
trade, in comparison to last FY which
saw around 230 cases.

Out of the 154 cases,

e 20 cases were related to sale of
prohibited wildlife

e 36 cases were on posession of
prohibited wildlife

e 41 cases were on cruelty and
welfare concerns related to
wildlife

e 22 cases were on poaching of
Singapore's native wildlife

This year, the ACIU also carried out
an investigation and will soon be
publishing findings and
recommendations on the issue of
online illegal wildlife trade on
Telegram platform.

Top: A case of a civet trapped and left in a
cage for three days in December 2022
Bottom:Poor welfare for many birds reported
to ACRES in April 2022




/

-- mpe =z =
i et !:E i

o E

(L

\/ Y
=2

e

LA\
A AN
/)

el

X7X 7Y
v X

—

Vs

7

:
s
4/}

Pic: a conure kept as a pet in a small cage, also
chained to the perch limiting movements and possibly
injuries. Currently there are no specific welfare
guidelines for keeping of wild animals such as birds.

NParks shared that there is an ongoing
the
conditions and  will

pet shop licensing
look into ACRES's

review of
recommendations.

We met again with NParks in July this year
and were glad to hear that the review
progress will be shared with us at the end
of this year. Positively looking forward to
the possible amendments to the licensing
conditions to improve the welfare of birds
kept at pet shops and by pet owners.

Here are some images providing you a
gist of the report. Full report can be found
at_https://bit.ly/ACRESBirdReport2022
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ACRES conducted an undercover

investigation into the conditions of
shops in Singapore displaying and
selling birds. We examined those
conditions which could be evaluated
solely on visual examination. For the
purposes of this report, the Pet Shop
Licence Conditions (4) Display And
Sale of Birds Conditions was used as
a benchmark against which to
evaluate the bird shops' practices in
respect of their display and sale of
birds.

In January 2022, ACRES met with
NParks the

recommendations for the review of

to discuss
the pet shop licensing conditions for
birds and code of animal welfare for
(pet) bird owners. Similar to the
animal welfare legislative committee,

ACRES group
discussions relevant

proposed  focus

fo engage

stakeholders to improve the welfare

conditions of these birds, which
NParks welcomed.
Scan OR to read the full
report by ACRES with
recommendations



https://bit.ly/ACRESBirdReport2022?fbclid=IwAR1Hlx_9FllMRosd4-sfq42vpuzBB15pB-zkuUOZ075yhocMpP9-f2khvZ8
https://bit.ly/ACRESBirdReport2022

WELFARE CASES

ACRES raised serious welfare concerns to AVS (Animal & Veterinary Service) on
the pony rides at Geylang Ramadan Bazaar this year, offered at Gallop Stables
booth and the other animals such as parrots used for photography and
entertainment. We also received several feedback from concerned members of
the public on the wellbeing of the animals and how having these animals at a
festive bazaar was unnecessary. ACRES met with AVS to share:

e Concerns on the use and transport of live animals for the purposes of
entertainment, with little or not educational value. educational value.

* Provided with two peer-reviewed scientific papers to indicate that horses
have shown elevated stress levels from transportation - both physical stress
indicated by elevated heart rates and physiological stress indicators such as
significant increases in cortisol, packed cells volume; behavioural indicators
such as recovery time to resume eating or drinking.

* We are pleased that AVS took our and public concerns into consideration,
and appropriate action/advisory was taken on booth operators.

Complaints made against operator of In light of this, ACRES has
pony rides at Geylang Serai Ramadan been continuing to appeal
azass to AVS to end issuing

license/permits  for  other
public events where
handling/petting live animals
occur, with no educational
value or supervision. Such
events include transporting
the animals such as chickens,
quails and cows to a venue,
for the purpose of exhibition.




An article that was published in 2021 by National Geographic on fake animal
rescue videos on social media platforms, and the trends that has driven the online
animal trade drove ACRES to want to tackle the issue of animal content that
surfaces on social media platforms. ACRES as a core member of Asia For Animals
coalition, actively participated with the formation of the sub group SMACC
(Social Media Animal Cruelty Coalition) to raise public awareness on this topic.
We also started publishing awareness materials on how public can play an active
role by reporting content related to sale and possession of wildlife, animal abuse,
animals used for entertainment purposes etc.

ACRES started reaching out
to social media platforms

How fake animal who had office in Singapore,

rescue videos ha\ .
become a new to work with them to prevent

§ frontier for anim: such content from surfacing

: abuse

and to help the platforms
understand terms such as
“cruelty” for example.

ACRES started reaching out to social media platforms who had office in
Singapore such as Tiktok and META, to work with them to prevent such content
from surfacing and to help the platforms understand terms such as “cruelty” for
example. With positive working relationships with Tiktok, many such content were
actively removed by them. This then led us to be invited to be a member of the
Social Media Animal Cruelty Coalition (SMACC) in November 2022. We have
been having discussions with the SMACC team and working together to find
solutions to tackle the online cruelty content on social media platforms. A joint
effort by SMACC members saw the release of many reports that highlighted
the plight of these animals. Click here to view the reports. ACRES will continue
working on this relevant issue locally.


https://www.smaccoalition.com/

ACRES ROLE

LEGISLATIVE CHANGE

Since 2021, NParks had conducted several engagements with nature groups
including ACRES, as part of the consultations in amendment of our Endangered
Species (Import & Export) Act, referred to as ESA for this report. ACRES actively
participated in this engagements to provide feedback in closed-door
engagements and submitted a position paper on the proposed amendments to
NParks CITES secretariat. ACRES also worked closely with the other nature group
stakeholders in Singapore, who work on this issue, tackling even at regional and
global level.

ACRES Recommendations for the Endangered Species
{Import & Export) Act Review

ACRES commends NParks for the review of the Endangered Species (Import &

Export) Act, agements with nature groups including ACRES and the public . B .
Celldd ot L ol B Ao When the ESA legislative review
now NParks' wildiife trade team, pem
resulting in several sting operafions,
information sharing and nabbing
offenders committing erirme lo wildlife.

entered the public consultation
phase, ACRES released a
document in November 2021 with

I this fight to end the cruel and lllegal & =
wildlife trade, ACRES supports the
following proposed amendments by
MParks:

1. Clarity in definitions of transit : ‘;:;: defInITIOHS 1-0 help pUth

and required documentation; h
2. Enhanced enforcement for NParks;
3. Hawaald anz r;crlﬁdenlia:i;'r:wl':l“i‘nfunnanls: un d € I'S'l'Cl n d b e-l"fe r a bo u.f 1- e
4, Increased penalties (from $50.000 per imen to $100,000 for CITES
el prr e spesmen amendments, and ACRES's
5. Increased maximum jail term from two to four years.
ACRES strongly believes thal all animals deserve the right to ve a safe life. proposed recommendOhonS°
Removal of wildlife from their habi and their expleitation for food, medicine,

omaments, souvenirs, entertainment or pets puls these animals threugh immense
suffering and raises serious welfare concemns.

We are pleased to share that in July 2022, the following enhancements were
passed to the ESA:

1. Longer jail term and heavier fines including a jail term of up to 8 years

2.  Stronger enforcement power. Enable seizure and forfeiture of conveyances
such as cars and vans and items used to deliberately conceal CITES specimens.
3. Greater clarity for stakeholders on the scope of Singapore’s wildlife trade
regulations.

ACRES together with other local groups continues to appeal to the authorities,
on recognising illegal wildlife trade as a serious organised crime, and tackle the
online illegal wildlife trade.


https://docs.google.com/document/d/1qzPiUEoHSUq52sVheIqxWndUBgtswCdUcbWDMXa4_Qg/edit
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1qzPiUEoHSUq52sVheIqxWndUBgtswCdUcbWDMXa4_Qg/edit

WILDLIFE TRADE CASES

In Sep 2022, our ACIU received tip on
possession of a leopard gecko through a
social media post. Even though a case
was filed with the NParks, this is one of
several cases that indicate challenges in
following up and tackling the issue online.

In December 2022, we received feedback from a concerned member of the

public on possession of sturgeons and axolotl. Even though NParks has not
provided us with updates, we have promptly provided information for further
investigation.

Amongst many such cases, we also
received tip of possession of prohibited
endangered Indian star tortoises at a
residence in November 2022. We are still
awaiting update from the enforcement
agencies on action taken. ACRES
continues to work with the agency on
these updates.




CRUELTY TO WILDLIFE

In April 2022, ACRES was informed of a
squirrel caught in a rat trap by security
guard and left at an open area without
shelter. We learnt that the animal was
caught as the animal was eating fruits
from the trees. Often, ACRES engages
mediation and education as a means to
address cruelty to animals. The squirrel
was released on the same day, after visit
and advise by our officers. The guards
were educated on squirrel behaviour and
coexistence as well.

In November 2022, we received feedback from a concerned member of the

public on pigeons trapped in a cage at Peck San Theng temple, some trampled
to death in crowded conditions with no water or shelter. Our visit showed that
8 pigeons were dead, and 10 live pigeons were rescued, out of which 2 died on
the way to our facility. Dialogue with the temple staff revealed issues of
pigeons as nuisance, due to offerings given by visitors. The temple also
informed that they had tried calling the authorities but no one came to pick up
the birds. Failure to provide care had resulted in death of the pigeons, which
prompted ACRES to file a case of cruelty, and continue to engage the temple.



CRUELTY TO WILDLIFE

We have also visited the temple and reminded the management to adhere
strictly to guidelines to safeguard animal welfare during bird control
operations, such as ensuring adequate food, water and adequate shelter
while the animals are under their care. We will continue to educate and work
closely with the temple to reduce and manage bird-related disamenities in
safe and humane manner. However, the issue repeated itself a few weeks
later, so ACRES has appealed for stern action on individuals involved.

In December 2022, ACIU received
information from a concerned member
of public who spotted a common palm
civet caught in a trap within a private
property and left unattended for three
days. Since it is within a private
property and the owner only returns
occassionally leaving the unit vacant
mostly, ACRES could not enter and
had to report to  authorities.
Unfortunately, the animal was missing
when NParks arrived on the same day.
This is an example for cases, where

things can take an unexpected turn,
leaving us in a state with no further
leads or information on what could
have happened to the poor animal.



CRUELTY TO

COMPANION ANIM

"ACRES has been working closely with the

inspectors of the SPCA over years, where all
companion animal cases are handled by SPCA
inspectorate. However, there could be some
cases such as ‘pet’ birds & turtles or animals
such as horses are handled by us or together
with the SPCA, due to their nature as wild
animals with varied needs.

Red-eared terrapins have long occupied the
list as one of the wild animals who are often
inappropriately housed with poor welfare
conditions.  In August 2022, we received
information on welfare concerns over these
turtles kept in small tub at o HDB unit. We
visited twice to engage the owners, in vain.

So ACRES resorted to filing a cruelty case for
the authorities to inform them with an
advisory. We also provided information on
what can be done to improve welfare, by
using a bigger enclosure with filtration system,
ensuring adequate sunlight and sufficient
basking platform is provided. We are pleased
that it was followed up by the AVS and
advisory was issued.

In August 2022, a concerned feedback
provider informed us via IG on welfare
conditions of poultry kept at Lucky Garden,
Dempsey. We have shared our concerns by

filing a case with AVS after visits, and yet to
receive updates on action taken.



In this financial year, we handled 22 poaching
cases in Singapore, compared to 28 in the
previous financial year. Most cases may not
have concrete evidence and may require
monitoring and repeated site visits to collect
evidence. The nature of follow up from
agencies require catching the offender in act,
and this can pose challenges in terms of
manpower and resources to carry out site visits
if the timings are not known. The role that the
feedback provider plays has been crucial in
successful outcomes for some of the cases.

In December 2022, ACIU responded to a
case of active trap for bulbul, at a Hougang
HDB unit and spoke to the owner of the trap.
Upon dialogue, we are pleased that the
individual obliged and removed the trap (top).
Monitoring also showed that no further traps
were set.

In the same month, we responded to a pulley
bird trap system at a HDB area in Yishun. Our
investigations revealed the unit number, which
has bee handed over to NParks. Hanging
parrots were being targetted for this case and
the traps were removed and dismantled on-
site.

In the same month, another trapping effort
was stopped through our mediation and
education at a landed estate.




Urban
Wildlife Working Group members

in April 2022, Singapore’s

together with other partners in the
nature community launched the
Our  Wild (OWN)

initiative - a consolidated, country-

Neighbours
wide outreach programme to
with
Singapore’s native wildlife. ACRES
is one of the core members, and

promote coexistence

currently manages the campaign
programmes funded by Mandai
Nature. This campaign website was
aptly Minister
Desmond Lee.

launched by

PROMOTING

COEXIST:

In this financial year, our wildlife management
team handled 990 cases involving human-
wildlife conflicts, compared to 1,266 cases in
the previous financial year. The reduction is
attributed to the decision we made on
of site visits and

reducing the number

optimising the resources we have in hand.

We instead focussed on addressing the issues
at the root cause, through a joint campaign
launched in April 2022, and through engaging
estate managers and educational institutions
for education efforts.

When speaking about the vision for ‘City in
Nature’, Minister Desmond Lee shared,
"Residents will be made more aware of the
need to save resources - by switching off
lights when they are not in use, recycling
more and saving water - and coexist with
the wildlife that will inevitably be drawn
into the green urban landscape.”




COEXISTENCE:

The OWN (Our Wild Neighbours) campaign
seeks to promote coexistence with wildlife in
Singapore, empower members of the public
with  wildlife etiquette knowledge, and
educate the public about ongoing rescue,
rehabilitation and release efforts. The website
launched is www.ourwildneighbours.sg.

The project funding came through in end
2022, thanks to Mandai Nature, and we
appointed a campaigns manager from

February 2023 onwards to run this campaign
full-time.

Until this period, ACRES and other members continued efforts to create the
content for the website, working with amazing volunteers and delivering outreach
programmes on coexistence such as the monthly story-telling programmes in NLB
(above), nature appreciation walks conducted by OWN volunteers and
Ottergrapher Bernard Seah, Macaque appreciation walks by JGIS (Jane Goodall
Institute of Singapore) and many more such programmes and efforts, all towards
promoting coexistence.

OWN Core Committee at the launch in
April 2022: ACRES, Mandai Nature,
NParks, Otterwatcher and volunteer
Bernard Seah, and the creators of the
website Catherine & Amanda.




COEXISTENCE:

URBAN BIRDS FOR

The first-ever urban bird forum in Singapore,
co-hosted by ACRES and SPCA, was a virtual
event that took place over 2 days on the
weekend of 23-24 July 2022. The forum
comprised a workshop for students on the first
day, and panels of invited speakers including
international and Singaporean researchers on
the second. The forum was targeted at various
local stakeholders, such as NParks, town
councils, pest control companies, the media

and the public.

The objectives of the forum were:

» To raise awareness about urban bird issues in
Singapore, and gain respect and understanding
for these birds;

* To explore humane methods for urban bird

Viil Meﬂmg

population management; and
e To spearhead further steps towards public SEEs
education to minimise human-bird conflict in !
Singapore.
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Day ONE workshops saw site visits conducted by iz,

.........

participants to an estate where they recorded their = =

........

observations of local urban birds (rock pigeons,
house crows and Javan mynas) and scored the bird ==
management measures in the estate. Some estates

surveyed included Jurong West/Jurong Gateway, =i
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Clementi West, Whampoa, Teck Whye, Sengkang and
Yishun Street 21. During the workshop discussions, 18 (G
participants  shared  their site visit findings,

brainstormed innovative solutions for the issue, and

concretised their ideas into plans.



COEXISTENCE:

URBAN BIRDS FOR

Day TWO of the forum hosted two engaging panel discussions on the following
topics:
e Ongoing urban bird management measures and ACRES' efforts to engage
town councils - Jocelyn Chng, Wildlife Management Team, ACRES
* Responsible feeding of community animals and glue traps - Aarthi Sankar,
Executive Director, SPCA
e Sharing from project on pigeon feeder engagement - Nurin Najwa, Ngee Ann
Polytechnic Civic Interns Winning project Team 3 sharing on their ideas to
heighten awareness on urban birds - Tong Yue, workshop participant
e Study on feral pigeon management at Texas Technological University - Ms Erin
Stukenholtz, M.S., Texas Tech University
o Feral pigeon population in Singapore and ecological-based animal
management - Dr Tang Qian, National University of Singapore
» Ecological studies of feral pigeons and house crows in Singapore - Dr Malcolm
Soh, National Parks Board

E URBAN BIRD FORUM 2022 w:unam BIRD FOR La i # Focus group discussions ¢ | »
= FGRUM
( i v & - St background Coear frarme
G rou p 1 Topic: Deepening our engagement with comn
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Feedback surveys were conducted to find out what actions participants will take
post-forum. Most of them recognised the need to curb the food sources
availability and need for education and awareness. Full report on the forum can
be found here.


https://drive.google.com/file/d/1hQgmoQe99nJ2RsosFfT6btvlWQtaXDSB/view

COEXISTENCE:

DEEPER ENGAGE

ACRES was the partner organisation chosen by Ngee Ann Polytechnic for their
Civic Challenge in March 2022. The winning team of the one-day event then
partnered with ACRES WMT to plan and conduct an engagement activity in Nee
Soon East, to raise awareness about pigeon feeding in the neighbourhood. The
team’s engagement activity was conducted on 11 June 2022 and was well
received, with learning points that were useful for future outreach activities on
pigeons. Detailed report of findings fromsite visits and residents’ engagement
were submitted to the relevant advisors and town councils for further follow up.

VERUITE LT STRITRITTE s U PVl IceEds

Block 269 & 270 in Nee Soon East Area has residents who consistently feed pigeons,
whether by throwing the food through windows or placing it on the grounds. This
caused residents who stayed on lower floors to find themselves with their clothes (that
are being sundried) to be soiled with pigeon defecation. (The resident who told us about
this hinted at them staying on the 2nd floor).

Lack of enforcement and unapproachable pigeon feeders

Most felt that this problem could not be solved as they believe that feeders are generally
hard to approach as well as a lack of enforcement.

Residents commented that enforcement could be improved or perhaps there could be a
better way of enforcement. Although there is a law with a hefty fine in place, the
residents feel that there would still be pigeon feeders as they would not be caught. Once
being caught pigeon feeding, most would just continue feeding as there is a lack of
strong enforcement and nothing can be done about it. Residents are unable to do

anything about it upon spotting a feeder as well as some are unsure of what they shy

do afterward if the feeders were to just continue feeding. There are also residents who
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ACRES hopes to engage the youth
more to allow them deeper
understanding of such issues, and
take an active role in animal
protection issues in Singapore. We
look forward to continue working with
Ngee Ann Polytechnic in the coming
years.




ACRES was one of the partners of the 7th Zero Waste Bootcamp organised by
Secondsguru in 2022. At this annual bootcamp, teams of young people are
partnered with various social and community organisations to tackle a challenge
related to sustainability. ACRES WMT mentored a team to conduct several site
visits and learn about macaque behaviour and etiquette. The team then
conducted 2 outreach roadshow booths on 7 and 13 August 2022 to spread
awareness about macaque etiquette. Some members of the team even continued
as ACRES roadshow volunteers after the Bootcamp ended.

N Edue to Trash management issues
= Monkey:
education, outreach and widife
Prooftrash bins.
- Topromote coexistencenvith
wildife3a festye

We are grateful for the experience
and the hard work put in by
Secondsguru. Unfortunately, due to
lack of manpower, we could not be
engaged in the next round, but we
hope to resume partnerships in the
future.




COEXISTENCE:

DEEPER ENGAGEMEN

“From May 2022, more reports of otter sightings and home intrusions in the estate
were received, and Grassroots Adviser Ms Nadia Ahmad Samdin, together with the
People’s Association (PA) staff of Cheng San-Seletar Constituency Office (CO),
contacted the Otter Working Group (OWG) to work together to address the
situation.

The OWG, which includes NParks, ACRES, otterwatchers and Mr Sivasothi (NUS
Department of Biological Sciences), had been monitoring the otters’ appearances
in the estate since they were first sighted in 2021.

Over the course of May to December
2022, an intensive outreach effort
was undertaken in the neighbourhood
by the joint OWG and PA team. This
included door-to-door visits, a hybrid
(online and face-to-face) resident
engagement session, a roadshow and
trial ofter-proofing exercises at two
affected houses. From August 2022
onwards, the otters’ movements were
also studied for two months by NUS
undergraduates and otterwatchers to
get a better understanding of their
behaviour in the estate.

To address this challenge, the team
identified two affected houses to
install  otter-proofing ~ measures.
NParks, ACRES and NUS conducted
house visits with the relevant

homeowners to better understand the

challenges at the specific sites.



COEXISTENCE:

DEEPER ENGAGEME!

Materials were then sourced and prepared by ACRES, and volunteers were

gathered to install the otter-proofing at the two houses from August to October

2022. Although there were calls from some residents to simply remove otters from

the estate, the OWG believes that relocation is not a sustainable, long-term

solution. If the environment remains suitable and attractive to certain wildlife,

removing one or a few individuals will simply leave a gap for other individuals to

occupy. Due to the proximity of Seletar Hills estate to the Sungei Punggol-

Serangoon catchment, which is host to several smooth-coated otter families,

relocation of this particular family would not stop otters from coming to the estate

in the long-term.

While residents might have had reservations relating
to the cost and aesthetics of otter-proofing solutions,
the trials that were done by the team showed that for
some houses, otfter-proofing may be as simple as
putting a relatively inconspicuous panel at the bottom
of the main gate. Preliminary footage from camera
traps installed by NUS research students showed that
the measures did discourage otters from entering the
same house.

Depending on the design and layout of a unit’'s pond
and garden, more complicated and extensive
solutions might be needed to prevent otters from
entering one’s premises and the potential loss of
beloved pet fish.

We hope that as Singapore becomes a City in Nature,
more residents can embrace the presence of wild
animals in their backyards and be ofterly good
neighbours to our wild friends!

Otter photo by Jocelyn Chng

in |




COEXISTENCE:

DEEPER ENGAGEI

Green Nudge is a social organisation that works with businesses and communities
to support their journey in sustainability. Over 2022-2023, Green Nudge has been
a valuable partner and supporter of ACRES, organising several outreach talks and
workshops for various segments of the community including families and specidal
needs teenagers.

Feedback from Green Nudge has been very positive
and encouraging, and we look forward to working
with them in the coming years too!

66

On behalf of the participants, thank you very much for
the wonderful session held yesterday! Having been

through a few sessions, | thought this session stood
out for the participants as they had more opportunity
to see and hear about ACRES work, including touring
the space, which helped to reinforce how they came
fo visit the space.

- Introducing the animals and their names allowed
the children to relate to the animals a lot more versus
seeing them an animal species and their back stories [
(i.,e. how they got there and where they will go) |
makes it a lot more easier to understand the concept
of recovery and rehabilitation

- Use of videos (e.g. how to interact with monkeys in
parks) was helpful to break the momentum of slides,
which gave a chance for participants to receive

information from different types of formats. ”



COEXISTENCE:

DEEPER ENGAGE

In September 2022, ACRES was approached by staff of the then-upcoming
Punggol Regional Library to collaborate in “creating meaningful, fun, and engaging
content revolving around our first theme, Punggol's Natural Gems.” Working with
the library, ACRES Wildlife Management Team then came up with content about
our native wildlife, especially those commonly seen in Punggol. The content was
successfully launched at the Punggol Regional Library’s opening ceremony on 5
April 2023.

| know how to be a good
neighbour to our wildlife!

Yes

No

Not sure

| want to learn more

Our gratitude to the National Library Board for this partnership, which allowed us
to create engaging and relevant content for the residents and users in Punggol
estate, and we look forward to continue working with the National Library Board
for the OWN (Our Wild Neighbours) campaign outreach in the coming years.



HUMANE EDUCATION

In this financial year, our humane education team delivered 133 programmes in
public and educational spaces, in comparison to 93 programmes in the previous
financial year ending March 2022. This is due to lifting of covid restrictions and
restarting visits and physical delivery of education programmes.

In the early 2023, we finally were able to shift our virtual programme fully back to
our interactive humane education programme by appointing Beng Yong Tang as
our new executive under the Humane Education Department. The team
acknowledged that in today’s digitalized world, there is an urgent call to plant and
sow the seeds of kindness and empathy as more people are disconnected from
nature.

The Humane Education team continues to form a positive working relationship
with the educational institutions across the Red Dot island from all walks of life.
ACRES aims to also engage with new customers while also retaining our clients
whom have been supporting us for years. Thank you teachers and supporters for
believing in us ! Below is the list of institutions that ACRES has delivered our
humane education programmes to:

Preschools:

Bright Kids School House ePunggol Field
E-Bridge Infant Care and Childcare Centre eEdgedale
Emile Preschool

Eton House

Learning Vision e Sengkang Hospital

Lily Valley Preschool

Little Footprints Preschool

MindChamps Preschool e Raffles Town Club
My First Skool @180B Boon Lay

My Worlde Bukit Panjang

Singapore Hokkien Huay Kuan Pre-School
The Little Skool House International Pte Ltd
Trehaus e Funan Mall Preschool
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HUMANE EDUCATION

Primary schools Secondary Schools

Admiralty Primary School Canada International School
Anderson Primary School Chung Cheng High School
Anderson Primary School Hwa Chong Institution
(Environment Club) Methodist Girls' School

Cedar Primary School Nan Chiau High School
German European School Singapore Nanyang Girls’ High School
Genesis School for Special Raffles Institution

Education Serangoon Secondary School
Geylang Methodist School (Primary) UWCSEA Dover (Middle School)

Huamin Primary School

Springdale Primary School

Tanglin School

UWCSEA Dover

Westwood Primary School

Zhangde Primary School

Environment Club

Private & Tertiary institutions
Artispique

Global Smart Expansion Consulting Co. Ltd
Green Nudge Strategies Pte Ltd

National Library Board - Chua Chu Kang
Ngee Ann Polytechnic

NTU Earthlink

Republic Poly - Diploma of Environmental

and Marine Science

Scouts Singapore

Singapore Indian Development Association
The Astronaut Collective

University of Exeter in England

Temasek Junior College



Giving a voice to the animals gets only stronger, when joining hands with the
young students and the schools across Singapore. This makes our advocacy work
much more meaningful and there is hope to the animal welfare because of the
schools’” community support! This financial year, the students partnered with us for
55 projects, being mentored by our staff and clocked in 3,602 hours through
Values-in-Action projects, in comparison to 2,343 hours in the previous financial
year. Below is the list of schools participating in our VIA projects.

Young students doing glass painting on our education centre windows, to prevent bird
collisions by minimising reflections from the glass.

Anglican High School Hwa Chong Institute
Anglo-Chinese Junior College Junyuan Secondary School
Beatty Secondary School Nanyang Junior College

Bukit Batok Secondary School Nanyang Technological University
Bukit Panjang Government High School National Junior College

Cedar Girls High School Northbrook Secondary School
CHIJ Toa Payoh Pierce Secondary School
Commonwealth Secondary School Punggol Secondary School
Dunman High School Raffles Girls School

Huayi Secondary School Saint Andrews Junior College



YOUTH FOR CAUS

Saint Joseph Institution

Singapore American School

Singapore Hokkien Huay Kuan Preschool
Swiss Cottage Secondary School
Tanglin Trust School

Temasek Junior College

Temasek Polytechnic

Youth For Causes (YFC) is a community initiative that was started by the YMCA
of Singapore since 2003, to promote social entrepreneurship and community

leadership development among Singapore youth. It provides youth aged 15 to 25
with a platform which includes seed funding, training, and volunteer mentorship
for executing self-initiated projects to raise public awareness, funds and mobilize
volunteers forsocial service agencies (SSA) of their choice. YFC complements the
“Values in Action” (VIA) programme.

We are fortunate to have 4 teams from 2 schools joining hands to raise both
awareness and fund for ACRES this year. From Temasek Junior College, these are
the teams: Team Wild, Team Sozo, and Team Call of the Wild (C.O.W). Animal
Hustlers is from National Junior College. In total, they have raised SGD $12,605.10.



YOUTH FOR CAUSI

Team Sozo (Temasek

Junior College). Special
mentioned: Shreya
Sharma, Adrika Singh,
Tan Jing Wen and Tan Yi
Fei. Team Sozo
volunteered to help paint

the windows of the
Education Centre to
prevent bird collisions
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YMCA-Youth for Causes Programme: Team Wild with Team C.O.W ( Temasek
Junior College) at Singapore Vegan Festival 2022, focusing on sustainable and
cruelty-free living.

Special mention to Team Wild (Caren Leow lJia Ern, Justin Goh Zhe Ming,
Changwichukarn Taya and Tan Hui Yu Leina) and Team C.O.W (Rayna Sing,
Lingzixi, Anna Ni Houjing and Tan Jiaq;)



We just wanted to thank
you and your colleagues
so very much for a
wonderful presentation
and tour for our students
on Monday. You were so
informative and
engaging, and wonderful
with the children! We
really appreciate your
time and thank you for
sharing your knowledge
and expertise with us.

Sincerely,
Tara and Kendra
(UWCsea Dover)

A good Monday morning to you both and thank you got having our students at
ACRES on 10th March! From the students' reflections, it appears that they found
the visit very meaningful and enjoyable. Some are even keen to volunteer at
ACRES! If you're keen to have them, perhaps we can explore a work attachment
during the end-of-year holidays? Do let me know. We look forward to continuing
this partnership in the future.

Best regards,
Gina (Nanyang Girls” High School) 99




Our gratitude also goes to all the sponsors, performers and artists and every
single individual who supported in many ways as a donor or a volunteer for this
event. Our special thanks to the bronze and silver ambassadors who have been

long-term supporters for the animals!

After a gap of 3 years, ACRES
was finally able to host a
fundraising gala dinner on 8th
October 2022, at One Farrer
Hotel.

Thank you for your generosity
and support, we not only raised
$128,000 for our animal
protection programmes, but also
had a fun and meaningful time
with 350 supporters.

Our heartfelt thanks to the

Guest of Honour SMS Ms Sim
Ann for gracing the event.




After the Covid-19 restrictions
were lifted, we were able to
welcome the corporate
volunteers once again to our
sanctuary to assist with our
operations.

A total of 452 corporate
volunteers clocked a total of
1,312 hours at our rescue centre,
helping with revamping of
enclosures, landscaping,
gardening and maintenance
tasks.




ACCOLADI

ACRES was proud to learn
about our Co-CEO Anbu, being
featured as one of the
successful inspiring women in
the second volume of the
Doyenne, book launched by the
LISHA Women's Wing, presented
to her by Madam President
Halimah Yacob. Selected by
nomination, Anbu shares, “/ am
honoured to be featured
alongside amazing successful
women in Singapore, and hope
that the readers will also be
inspired about local animal
protection efforts”.

In March 2023, ACRES was
presented with the community
award by the Cheng San
Community Club,
acknowledging the contribution
to the joint project between PA,
NParks, Otterwatchers, NUS and
the residents - all fowards
coexistence with otters in
Seletar Hills estate.

Our heartfelt gratitude for this
acknowledgement.
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Nearly 1,000 birds, other wildlife

accidentally caught by glue traps In this financial year, ACRES
meant for rats since 2020

continued to give a voice to the
animals, through mentions on
102 articles on print, radio and
TV - mostly national, and some
international.

Python coiled around lightings 4-5m above ground
at Choa Chu Kang, rescued by Acres

ﬁ Shahanas Begum

ACRES raises concerns over horse
rides at Geylang Serai Ramadan
bazaar as animals used to
entertain for long hours amid heat,
noise, and big crowds

ADVERTISEMENT

" ;:.i'reworks of My Heart on Viu Otter-prooﬁng homes among tipS for
) Cheng San-Seletar residents to co-exist

with wildlife

Ph

Kok Yufing

Transport Correspondent
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Animal Concerns Research and Educalion Society
JUEN. TOISSOI2IK]

Avdited Financia! Stalememnts
Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

STATEMENT BY THE MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

In the opinion of the Management Committee, the accompanying fimancial statements are drawn up
=50 as to present fairly, in all material respects, the state of affairs of Animal Concerns Research and
Education Society (the "Society™) as at 31 March 2023 and the results, changes in funds and cash

flows of the Society for the year then ended.

At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Society will ke able to

pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Management Committee, comprising the following, awthorised the issue of these financial

statements on

President Umapathi 5/0 N Thirugnanam
Vice President Satya Dhama Tiwari
Secretary Andrew Tay Teck Lee
Treasurer Mozslle Seet Siok Lin

Committee Membsar Ahuja Alpana
Committee Member Maomi Catherine Clark=5hen

For and on behalf of the Management Committee,

B uSigrad by: Docudigred by

BTIET 1RATSAAREACT ..qlr.l.l.“ 1R
Andrew Tay Teck Lee Moalle Seet Siok Lin
Sacretary Treasurer

Singapore, 4 September 2023
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Aupdited Financia! Stalements
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Fiducia LLP

Public Accountants and Independent auditor’s report to the members of:
Chartered Accountants of Singapore

ANIMAL CONCERNS RESEARCH AND EDUCATION

71 Ubi Crescent SOCIETY

Excalibur Centre #08-01 [UEM. TOLSS0121K]

Singapore 408571 [Registersd under the Socisties Act 1966 in the
T: (65) 6846 B376 Republic of Singapore]

F: {65) 6491 5218

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We hawve audited the financial statements of Animal Concerns Research And Education Society {the
"Society"), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, the statemeant of
financial activities, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the finandal year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summarny of significant accounting
policies.

Im our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Societies Act 1966 (the "Societies Act”), the Charities Act 1994 and other relevant
regulations (the "Charities Act and Regulaticns™) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore
("FRS5s™) 50 as to present fairly, in all material respects, the state of affairs of the Society as at
31 March 2023 and the results, changes in funds and cash flows of the Society for the finandal year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted owr audit in accordance with Simgapore Standards on Auditing ("55A4s"). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Fnancial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Society in
accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority ("ACRA") Code of Professional
Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounbting Entities (MACRA Code") together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we
hawve fulfilled owr other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ACRA
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we hawve obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Statement
by the Management Committee [set out on page 2}, but does not indude the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon, which we obtained prigr to the date of this auditor's report, and the
annual report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In conmection with owr audit of the financial statements, ocur responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or cur knowledge obtained in the audit or ctherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we hawve performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are reguired to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Govermance for the Finamcial
Statements

Mamagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act, the Charities Act and Regulations and FRSs, and
for such internal control as managemeant determines is necessary to enable the preparation of finandal
statements that are free from material misstatemeant, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Socieby's abiliby
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidate the Sodety or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversesing the Sodety’s financial reperting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemeants

Our chjectives are to obtain reasonakble assurance about whether the financial skatemants as a whola
are free from material misstatement, whether duse to frawd or error, and to isswe an auvditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an awdit conducted in accordance with S58s will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or ermor and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reascnably be esxpected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financdial statements.

A5 part of an auwdit in accordance with 558s, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those nisks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher tham for one
resulting from error, as fraud may inwvolve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misreprasantations, or the override of internal control.

= DObtain an understanding of internal contrel relevant to the awdit in order to design awdit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Society's internal control.

=  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by managemeant.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Society's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are reguired
to draw attention in cur auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based om
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditor's report. Howewver, future events or
conditions may cause the Society to czase to continue as a going concern.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements {Cont"d)

As part of an auwdit in accordance with S55As, we exercise professicnal judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: {cont'd)

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the fimnancial statemeants represant the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiendes in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Im our opinian,

{a) the accounting and other records required to be kept by the Society have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Societies Regulations enacted under the Societies Act, the
Charities Act and Regulations; and

(b} the fund-raising appeals held during the year ended 31 March 2023 has been carried out im
accordance with Regulation & of the Societies Regulations issued under the Societies Act and
proper accounts and other records hawve been kept of the fund raising appeals.

Dwring the course of our audit, nothing has come to pur attention that caused us to believe that during
the year:

{a) the Society has not used the donation moneys in accordance with its objectives as required under
Regulation 11 of the Charities {Institutions of a Public Characker) Regulations; and

(b} the Society has not complied with the requirements of Regulation 15 of the Charities (Institutions
of a Public Character) Regulations.

Doculigred by
Fidugia (1P
BRI CC | Tkl T4

Fiducia LLF

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore, 4 September 2023

Partner-in-charge: Gan Chek Huat
PAB MNao.: 01939
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Audited Finamncial Statements
Financial Year Ended 21 March 2023

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2023
Unrastricted
fupned Restricted funds
Wildlira CF% - A WL Tolal unrastrictad
Campaign Wegetable Qthar Regional and restricted
General fund Initiatives Garden Funds Grant fundgs
Mote 55 5% 5% 5% 5% 55
INCOME
Incoma from genarated funds
Voluntary incame
Donations & H38,127 1] 0 1 o 038,127
Fees 7 127,170 o o 0 i 127,170
Fund raising incomsa [ 155,786 o 0 0 i 155,786
82,956 ] 0 1 0 282,958
Income from charitable activities
Grant income
Mandai Mature i &6175 0 0 0 G, 175
Charitias Ajd Foundation - CISCO GRANT [u] u] u] 1,B33 i) 1,853
il 56,175 0 1,653 0 a8, 028
Other income
Marchandise sales 6,087 0 0 0 ] &, 097
amartisation ol deferred capital
arants i5 14,110 u} u} 0 i 14,110
CPF transition offset 151 ] 0 0 0 151
Gain an dispaszal af property,
plant and aquigmant 5.500 o u} 0 0 5.500
Frogressive wage oredit scheme 23,446 o o o o 23,445
Senior employment cradit 274 0 0 0 0 274
Utilisation of daferred incoma 16 £1,308 0 0 0 0 21,308
Yaouth Mor causa arant 4,800 o o 0 i 4,800
Miscellaneous imcoma 4,913 0 0 0 0 4,913
Bi,5949 1] 1] 1 [ A0, 555
Tatal income 1,301,682 56,175 0 1,653 0 1,369,710
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Audited Fnancial Statements
Financial Year Ended 21 March 2023

STATEMENT OF FINAMCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2023
Unrastricted
fapned Restrictad finds
Wildlira CF% - A WL Tolal unrastrictad
Campaign ‘Wegetable Cichar Regignal and restricted
General fund Iniciatives Gardan Funds Grant funds
MNote 55 5% 5% 5% 5% 55
INCOME
Incoma from genarated funds
Voluntary incame
Donations & H3R,127 1] 1 0 0 033,127
Fees 7 127,170 o 0 o i 127,170
Fund raising incomsa [ 155,786 o 0 u] i 155,785
282,956 ] 1 1 0 282,95&
Income from charitable activities
Grant income
Mandai Mature ] B6,175 0 i 0 aih, 175
Charitias Ajd Foundation - CISCO GRANT u} u] 0 1,B33 i) 1,853
il 56,175 1 1,853 0 ad,028
Other income
Marchandise sales 6,087 0 0 ] ] 6,097
amaortisation ol deferred capital
arants 15 14,110 u} 0 ] i 14,110
CPF transition offset 151 ] 0 i 0 151
Gain an dispaszal af property,
plant amnd aquigmant 5.500 o 0 o 0 5.500
Frogressive wage oredit scheme 23,446 o o ] o 23,445
Senior employment cradit 274 0 0 0 0 274
Utilisation of daferred income 16 £1,308 0 0 0 0 21,308
Yaouth for causa grant 4,800 o 0 o i 4,800
Miscellaneous incoma 4,913 0 0 0 0 4,913
Bl 599 0 1 0 [ A, 555
Tatal income 1,301,682 56,175 1 1,653 0 1,369,710
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Financial Year Ended 21 March 2023

STATEMENT OF FINAMCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 (CONT'D)

2022
Linrestricted
fupned Restricted funds
Wildlifa CFS - LECE (R Total unrastrictad
Campaign  Vegetable Othar Ragianal and restricted
General Tund Initiakives Garden Tunds Grant Tunds
Note 55 54 21 % ] 5% 55
INCOME
Incoma from genarated funds
Woluntary income
Danations [ EZB. 079 [u} 0 432 i) B28.511
i ing fi
Fees Fa 184,067 i 0 0 0 184,067
Fund raising inconmsa [ 20,472 [u} 0 2,000 i 22 472
204,539 [u] 0 2,000 i) 206,539
Other income
Amartisation of deferred capital
arants 15 22,034 i} 0 o 1,177 23,211
amartisation of provision far
rainstatemant ] [u} 0 ] i ]
Jobs support schemea 12,376 u} 0 o 0 12,376
Senipr employment cradit L 0 0 0 0 B
Utilisation of daferred income 16 3,295 0 0 0 0 3,295
Migscallaneaus incoma 30,389 [u] 0 u] i) 30,389
68,673 [u} 0 u] 1,177 69,850
Tatal incoma 1,101,291 1 1 d432 1,177 1,108,900
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Audited Fnancial Statements
Financial Year Ended 21 March 2023

STATEMENT OF FINAMCIAL ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023 (CONT'D)

2022
Unrestricted
fund Restricted funds
Wildlife CFS - AXA L Total unrestricted
Campaign Vagetable Othar Regional and restricted
Gareral Tund Initialives Gardan funds Grant Tursds
Mabe 55 55 %5 55 5% Sf

EXPENDITURE
Cost of generating funds
Fund raising axpenses 26 615 [u} [V} [1] 1] 615
Cast of charitable activities
Animal protection programme

axpeEnges B an?,1a5 Ll 274 1,132 1,398 Q09,933
Governance and

administrative costs
Sdministrative expenses o 229,188 0 o 30 ] 229 488
Tatal expanditurs 1,134,943 4 274 1,432 1,398 1,140,096
Mat {expenditure)fincame far

tha year (35,607 4] (274 1,00 (221} (35,196)
Tatal funds braught forsard 1,117,702 4 3s7 5,457 971 1,124,531
Total funds carried forward 1,082,005 o 123 6,457 750 1,089,335

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Audited Financial Statements
Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

2023 2022
Mobe 5% 54
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 11 1,391,118 1,087,342
Fees and other receivables 12 81,674 67,104
1,472,792 1,154 446
MNon=current assets
Property,. plant and eguipment 13 L4, 435 622 616
Si64,435 622,616
Total assets 2,037,227 1,777,062
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Other payables 14 36,671 76,138
Contract liakilities 5 0 396
Deferred capital grants 15 11,287 14,109
Deferred income 16 11,103 1,358
Lease liabilites 17 18,648 20,516
127,709 112,517
Mon-current liabilities
Deferred capital grants 15 26,661 37,949
L=ase liabilities 17 75,448 34,764
Other payables 14 532,216 S02,497
634,325 575,210
Total liabilities FE2,034 G687, 727
MET ASSETS 1,275,193 1,089,335
FUNDS
Unrestricted fund
General fund 18 1,208,705 1,082,005
Restricted funds
Wildlife Campaign Initiatives 19 59,411 i]
CFS - Wegetable Garden 20 i 123
Other funds 6,327 5,457
AxA XL Regional Grant 21 F50 750
66,488 7.330
TOTAL FUNDS 1,275,193 1,089,335

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial skatemeants.
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Audited Financial Statements
Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

FOR THE FINAMCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2023
Unrestricted fund
General fund

Restricted funds
Wildlife Campaign Initiatives

CFS - Vegetable Garden
Other funds

AxA KL Regional Grant

Total funds

2022
General fund

Restricted funds

Wildlife Campaign Initiatives
CF5S - Wegetable Garden
Other funds

AxA XL Regional Grant

Total funds

Met incomef
Balance at {expenditure) for  Balance at end
beginning of year the fimancial year of year
55 55 55
1,082,005 126,700 1,208,705
a 59.411 59.411
123 {123) i]
6,457 {130) 6,327
750 ] =il
7.330 59,158 &6, 448
1,089,335 185,858 1,275,193

MNet {expenditura)/

Balance at income for the Balance at end
beginning of year fimancial year of year

55 =1 54

1,117.702 (35,697 1,082,005

4 {4 ]

397 (274 123

457 1,000 6,457

971 (2213 750

&, 829 S0l 7,330

1,124.531 {35,196} 1,089,335

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these finandal statements.
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Audited Financial Statements
Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

FOR THE FINAMCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

2023
Unrestricted fund
General fund

Restricted funds
Wildlife Campaign Initiatives

CFS - Vegetable Garden
Other funds

AxA KL Regional Grant

Total funds

2022
General fund

Restricted funds

Wildlife Campaign Initiatives
CF5S - Wegetable Garden
Other funds

AxA XL Regional Grant

Total funds

Met incomef
Balance at {expenditure) for  Balance at end
beginning of year the fimancial year of year
55 55 55
1,082,005 126,700 1,208,705
a 59.411 59.411
123 {123) i]
6,457 {130) 6,327
750 ] =il
7.330 59,158 &6, 448
1,089,335 185,858 1,275,193

MNet {expenditura)/

Balance at income for the Balance at end
beginning of year fimancial year of year

55 =1 54

1,117.702 (35,697 1,082,005

4 {4 ]

397 (274 123

457 1,000 6,457

971 (2213 750

&, 829 S0l 7,330

1,124.531 {35,196} 1,089,335

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these finandal statements.
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Audited Financial Statements
Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINAMCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial
statements.

1.

4.1

General information

Animal Concerns Research and Education Socisty (the "Socisty™) is registered and domiciled in
Singapore. The Society's registered office and principal place of business is at 91 Jalan Lekar
Singapore 698917

The Society was registered on 24 May 2001 under the Societies Act 1966 and is a charity registered
under the Charities Act 1994 since 11 January 2005, The Society has been accorded the Institutions
of a Public Character {"IPC") status wuntil 30 November 2022. The Society has renewed its IPC status
from 1 December 2022 to 30 Movember 2023,

The principal activities of the Society is to foster respect and compassion for animals, improve the
liwing conditions and welfare of animals in captivity, and to educate people on lifestyle choices which
do mot involve the abuse of animals and which are environment friendly.

Significant accounting pelicies
Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards in
Singapore ("FRSs™) and the disclosure reguirements of the Societies Act 1966 and Charities Act 1994,
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed
in the accounting policies below.

Thase financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollar (M54, which is the Sodety’s functional
Currency.

The areas invclving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Mota 3.

2.1.1 Interpretations and amendments to published standards effective in 2022

In the current fimancial year, the Society has adopted all the new and revised FRSs and
Interpretations of FRSs ("INT FRSs") that are relevant to its operations and effective on
1 April 2022, The adoption of the standard did not have any material effect on the fimancial
statements.

The adoption of these new or amended FRSs and INT FRSs did not result in substantial
changes to the Society's accounting policies and had not material effect on the amounts
reported for the current or prior financial years.
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Audited Financial Statements
Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

2,

2.1

2.2

Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Basis of preparation (Cont"d}
2.1.2 Standards issued but not vet effective

The Society has not adopted the following relevant mewf/amended FRSs, INT FRSs and
amendments to FRSs that wers issued but not yet effective:

Effective for annual

Description periods beginning on or
after

Amendments to FRS 1 and FRS Practice Statement 2 : Disclosure 1 January 2023

of Accounting Policies
Amendments to FRS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
Amendments to FRS 12, FRS 101: Deferred tax related Assets

and Liabilities arising from a Single  Transaction 1 January 2023
Amendments to FRS 1: Classification of Liabilities as Current or

Non-current 1 January 2024
Amendments to FRS 1: Non=current Liakilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
Amendments to FRS 116: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leassback 1 January 2024
Amendments to FRS 110 and FRS 28: Sale or Contribution of

Assets between an Inwvestor and its Associate or Joint Venture Date to be determined

The Management Committee expect that the adoption of the revised standards abowve will
hawve no material impact on the finandal statements in the pericd of initial adoption.

Income recognition

Income is measured based on the consideration to which the Scdety expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excleding amounts collectad on
behalf of third parties.

Income is recognised when the Saociety satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised
good and service to the customer, which is when the customer obtains control of the good or service.
A performance obligation may be satisfied at a peoint in time or ower time. The amount of income
recognised is the amount allocated to the satisfied performance obligation.

Income is recognised as follows:
2.2.1 Donations

Revenue from donations and sponsorships are accounted for when received, except for
committed donations and sponsorships that are recorded when the commitrments are signed.
Such income is only deferred when the donor specifies that the sponsorship or donation must
be used in future accounting pericds or the donor has imposed conditions that must be met
before the Society has unconditional entitlement. Donations-in-kind are recognised when the
fair value of the assets received can be reasonably ascertained.

2.2.2 Service fee

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised once the services have been performed
and rendered.

2.2.3  Programme feas

Programme fees are recognised throughout the duration of the programme.
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Audited Financial Statements
Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

2.2

2.3

2.4

Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)
Income recognition {Cont'd)

Income is recognised as follows: [Cont'd)

2.2.4 Fundraising

Revenue from special events is recognised when the event takes place.
2.2.5 Other incorme

Other imcome is recognised when received.
Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value
is recognised as deferred capital grant on the statement of financial position and is amortised to the
statement of financial activities over the expectad useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalmeants.

Where loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions with an interest
rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as
additional government grant.

Expenditure recognition

All expenditure is accounted for on accrual basis, aggregated under the respective areas. Direct costs
are attributed to the activity where possible. Whera costs are not wholly attributable to an activiby,
they are appointed on a basis consistent with the use of rescurces.

2.4.1 Cost of generating funds

Caost of generating funds comprises all directly attributable costs incurred in the fund maising
activities such as F&B costs for Gala Dinner.

2.4.2 Cost of charitable activities

Cost of chartable activities comprises all directly attributable costs incurred in the pursuit of
the charitable objects of the Society and an appertionment of overhead and shared costs.

2.4.3 Governance and administrative costs

Governance costs include the cost of governance arrangement, which related to the general
running of the Society, providing governance infrastrecture and ensuring public accountability.
These costs include costs related to constitubional and statutory reguirements and an
apportionment of owerhead and shared costs.
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Audited Financial Statements
Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

2. Significant accounting policies {Cont'd)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

251

2.5.2

2.5.3

2.5.4

Measuremeant

All property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost and subseguently carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment initially recognised includes its purchase
price and any costs that are directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by Management.

Dismantlement, removal or restoration costs are incleded as part of the cost of property,
plant and eguipment if the abligation for dismantlement, remowval or restoration is imcurred
as a consequence of acguiring or wsing the property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated wsing the straight-line method to allocate their depredable amounts
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Usaful lives
Motor wehicles 10 years
Office and other equipment 3 years
Film eguipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 years
Quaramtine assets 3 - 5 years
Right-of-use assets = premise Cwear the remaining lease term
Reinstatement cost 8 years

The residual values, estimated wseful lives and depredation method of property, plant and
eguipment are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each reporting date. The effects of
any revision are recegnised in the statement of finandial activities in the financial year in
which the changes arise.

Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the financial statements.
Subsequent expenditura

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and eguipment that have already been
recognised is added to the carmying amount of the asset anly when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Socdety and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. Other subseguent expenditure is recognised as repair and
maintenance expenses in the statement of financial activities during the financial year in
which it is incurred.

Disposal

On disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the net
disposals proceeds and its carrying amount is taken to the statement of financial activities.
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2.6

2.7

Significant accounting policies {Cont'd)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Mon-financial assets are reviewed for impairment whenaver there is any indication that these assets
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair
value less cost to sell and value in use) of the assets is estimated to determinme the amount of
impairment loss.

For the purpose of impairment testing of assets, recowverable amount {i.e. the higher of the fair value
less cost to sell and the value<in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset
does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. If this is the
case, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit {"CGU"} to which the asset
belongs.

If the recowerable amount of the assset or CGU is estiimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.

The differance betwesan the carrying amownt and recoverable amount is recognised as an impairment
loss in the statement of financial activities, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount, in which
case, such impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

An impairment loss for an asset is reversad only if, there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the assets recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The
carrying amount of this asset is increased to s revised recoverable amount, provided that this

amount does not excead the carrying amount that would have been determined {net of accumulated
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.

A rewversal of impairment loss for an asset is recognised in the statement of financial activities.
Financial assets
2.7.1 Classification and measurement

The Sodety classified its financial assets into measurement category of amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Society's business model for managing the financial assets
as well as the contractual terms of the cash flows of the financial asset.

Finandal assets with embedded derivatives are considerad in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

The Socieby reclassifies debt instruments when and only when its business model for
managing those assets changes.

(i} At initial recognition

AL inftial recognition, the Society measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or lass, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acguisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensad in the
statemnent of financial activities.

(i} At subsequent measurement

Crelbt instruments

Cebt instruments mainly comprise of cash and cash eguivalents and Fee and other
receivables.
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2. Significant accounting policies {Cont'd)

2.7 Financial assets (Cont'd)

2.7.1

2.7

2.7.3

Classification and measurement [Cont'd)
{ii) At subsequent measurement

There are three subseguent measurement categories, depending on the Society's
business model in managing the assets and the cash flow characteristics of the assets.
The Society managed these group of financial assets by collecting the contractual
cash flow and these cash flows represented solely payment of principal and interest.
Accordingly, these group of financial assets are measured at amortised cost
subsequent to inftial recognition.

A gain or loss on a debt instrument that is subsequently measured at amortised cost
and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included
in intarest income using the effective interest rate method.

Impairment

The Society assesses on forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost.

For cash and cash equivalents and Fee and other receivables, the general 3 stage approach
is applied. Credit loss allowance is based on 12-month espected credit loss if there is no
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the assets. If there is a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, lifetime expected credit loss will be calculated
and recognised.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date = the date
on which the Society commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Finandal assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and the Society has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership.

On disposal of a debt instrument, the difference between the carrying amount and the sale
proceseds is recognised in profit or loss. Any amount previcusly recognised in other
comprehensive income relating to that asset is reclassified to the statement of financial
activities.

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents include deposits with financial institution that is subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.
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2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

Significant accounting policies {Cont'd)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Society becomes a party to the
contractual provision of the financial instrument and are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into. All interest related charges are recognised in the statement
of finandal activities. Financial liabilities include “Other payables™ and "Lease liabilitias™ in the
statemeant in the statement of financial position.

Financial liakilities which are due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date are presented
as current liakilities in the statement of finandal pesiton even though the original term was for a
pericd longer than 12 months and an agreement to refinance, or to reschedule payments, on a long-
term basis is completed after the reporting date and before the finandal statements are authorised
for issuwe. Other finandal liabilities due to be settled more than 12 months after the reporting date
are presented as non=current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Financial liakilities are derecognised when the obligations under the liakility is discharged, cancelled
or expire. When existing financial liabilites are replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of financial activities.

Other payables

Other payables, excluding accruals, are recegnised at their transaction price, excleding transaction
costs, if any, both at imitial recognition and at subseguent measurement. Transaction costs are
recognised as expenditure in the statement of financial activities as incurred. Accruals are recognised
at the best estimate of the amount payable.

Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Provisions for other liabilities and charges are recognised when the Society has a present legal or
constructive cbligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an cutflow of rescurcas
will be reguired to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Leases

The Society assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

{a) As lesses

The Society applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short<term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Sodety recognises lease liabilities
representing the obligations to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying leased asssts.

Right-of-use assets

The Socieby recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease [i.e. the
date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
which comprises the initial measurement of lease liabilities adjusted of any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date and lease incentive received. Any imitial direct
costs that would not have been incurred if the lease had not been obtained are added to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use assets,
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2. Significant accounting policies {Cont'd)

2.12 Leases (Cont'd)

(2}

As lessee (Cont'd)
Right-of-use assets (Cont'd)

These right-of-use assets is subsequently depreciated wsing the straight-line mathod from
the commencement date to the earier of the end of the wseful life of the right-of-use asset
or the end of the leass term.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Society at the end of the lease term or the
cost reflecks the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. The accounting
policy for impairment is disclosad in Note 2.6, The Society's right-of-use assets are presented
within "Property, plant and eguipment” as disclosed in Note 13.

| liabiliti

The initial measurement of lease liability is measured at the pressnt wvalue of the lease
payments discounted using the implicit rake in the lease, if the rate can be readily determined.
If that rate cannot ba readily determined, the Society shall use its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments indude the following:

Fixed payment (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivables;

“ariable lease payment that are based on an index or rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commeancement date;

Amount expected to be payable under residual value guarantees;

The exercise price of a purchase option if is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and
Payment of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Society
axercising that option.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Scdety uses its incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilites is
increasa to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.

Lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Lease
liakility shall be remeasured when:

There is a change in future lease payments arising from changes in an index or rate;
There is a change in the Society's assessment of whether it will exercise an extension
option; or

There are medifications in the scope or the consideration of the lease that was not part of
the original term.

Lease liability is remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset, oris
recorded im the statement of finandal activities if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The Society's lease liabilities are disclosed in Mote 17.
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2,

2.12

.13

2.14

2.15

Significant accounting policies {Cont'd)
Leases (Cont'd)
{a) As lessee (Cont'd)
Leass liabilities [Cont'd)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Society applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
office premise {i.e. those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-
value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low walue. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on
straight=line basis over the lease term.

Variable lease payments

ariable lease payments that are not based on an index or a rate are not included as part of
the measurement and initial recognition of the lease liability. The Society shall recognise
those |lzase payments in the statement of financial activities in the periods that triggered
those lease payments.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs that are not directy attributable to the acguisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowings are inidally recognised at their fair values {net of transaction costs) and subseguently
carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and their
redemption values is recognised in the statement of financial activities over the period of borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings, which are due to be sattled within twelve months after the reporting dake, are included
im current borrowings in the statement of finandal pesition.

Employes compensation
2.15%.1 Defined contribution plans

The Society makes contributions to the Central Providenmt Fund scheme in Singapore, a
defined contrbution pension scheme. Contributions to defined contribution pension schemeas
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the related service is performed.

2.15.2 Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee bensfit obligations are measured on an wundiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liakility is recognised for the amount expectad
to be paid if the Society has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as
a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated
reliably.
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2.16

217

2.18

3.1

3.2

Significant accounting policies {Cont'd)
Fund

Restricted fund balances are restricked by outside sources and may only be utilised in accordance
with the purposes for which they are established. Designated funds are earmarked for specific
purposes and are largely made up of funds allocated at the discretion of the Management committee.
Thase designated funds are treated as restricted funds as they contain funds restricted by outside
SOUrCEs,

The Management Committee retains full control over the use of unrestricted funds for any of the
Society’s purposes.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A contingent asset is
not recognised im the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefit is
probabla.

Events after the reporting date

Ewent after the reporting date that provide additional information about the Society's position at the
reporting date (adjusting ewents) are reflected in the financial statements. Event after the reporting
date that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements when material.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Scciety’'s financial statements reguires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumpticns that affect the reported amounts of income, expenditure, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting pericd. Uncartainty
about these assumption and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustmeant
to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the future pericds.

Judgements mada in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the Scciety's accounting policies, the management has made certain
judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which hawve significant effect on the amounts
recegnised in the financial statemants.

Government grants

Grants to mest operating expenses are recognised as income in the income and expenditure
statement on the accrual basis in the year these operating expenses were incurred and there is
reasonable assurance that the Society will comply with the conditions attached to it. For certain
gramts, the agencies reserve the right to withdraw, withhold or reduce the amount of any funds
approved but not yet disbursad or to call for the refund of all funds which have besn disbursed to the
Society if the conditions are not met.

Key sources of estimation uncartainty

The key assumpticns concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of reporting pericd are discussed below. The Scciety based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and
assumptions about future developments, howewver, may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Society. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions whean they ocour.
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3. Significant accounting judgemeants and estimatas [(Cont'd)
3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont"d)

Usaful lives of property, plant and agquipment

Management determines the estimated wseful lives and the related depredaticn for its property, plant
and equipment based on the period over which the property, plant and equipment are expected to
prowide economic benefits. Management’s estimation of the wussful lives of property, plant and
eguipment is based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and
experience with similar assats.

The estimation of the useful lives of the property, plant and eguipment could change significantly
due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolesce and legal or other limits on the use
of property, plant and eguipment. The deprecation is increased where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives.

The carrying value of property, plant and equipment as of 31 March 2023 and 2022 are disdosed in
Mote 13 of these financial statements.

Based on Management’s assessment, no change in the estimated wseful lives of property, plant and
eguipment is required as of 31 March 2023 and 2022,

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plamt and eguipment is tested for impairment whenever there is any objective evidence or
indication that these assets may be impaired. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units. Estimating the value in use requires the Company to make an estimate of the expected

future ash flows from the cash-generating units and also to chooss a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.

4, Income tax

The Socisty is a charity registered under the Charities Act, 1994 since 11 January 2005.
Consequently, the income of the Society is exempted from tax under the provisions of Section 13
(1}(zm) of the Income Tax Act, 1947,

5. Total incoming resources

{a) Total incoming resources for the year:

2023 2022
Mote 5% 5%

Conations G 938,127 828,511
Fees ? 127,170 184,067
Fund raising imcome & 155,786 22472
Grant income 6B, 028 i}
Other imcome
= Amortisation of deferred capital grants 14,110 23,211
= 3ain on disposal of property, plant and

equipmeant G, 500 (]
= Utilisation of deferred income 21,308 3,2495
= Other miscellaneous grants and subsidies 34,768 12,955
= Others 44913 30,389

1,369,710 1,104,900
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5. Total incoming resources [Cont'd)

i) Disaggregation of rewenue from contracts with customers

2023 2022
5% 5%
Revenuea from:
Donation
= Tax exempt 0 i
= Mon-tax exempt 35E 1,300
358 1,300
Frogramme fees 23 B9%5 24 293
Service fees 103,275 159,775
127,170 184 067
Timing of transfer of services
= At a point im time 23,895 25,592
- Over the time 103,275 159,775
137,170 185,367
(c) Contract asssts
2023 2022
5% 5%
Amounts received in advance for programme fee 2410 ]

Contract assets primarily relate to the Society’s right to consideration for service rendered but not
yet billed at reporting date for programme fee. Contract assets are transferred to receivables when
the rights become unconditional. This usually occurs when the Society raise the inwvoice
subsegquently.

(d} Contract liabilities

2023 2022
5% 53
Amournts received in advance for Gala Dinner events
programme fee 0 296
(i} Income recognised in relaton to contract liabilities
2023 2022
St 5%
Revenue recognised in current period that was included in
contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the yvear 396 B2S

The contract liabilities relate to the ticket sales for Gala Dinner fundraising event and programme
fees received im advance. Revenue will be recognised when the eavents/programmes are held.
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&. Donations

2023
Unrestricted
fund Rastricted funds
Wildlife CF5 - BxA wL Total unrestricted
Campaign Vagatable Ragianal and restrictad
Gereral Tond Initiatives Garden Othear Tunds Grant furids
55 54 55 55 5% =H
Tax deductible donations
Veluntary incame
Daonations E96 495 0 i} [} 0 696,495
Activities for genarating funds
Fund raising incamea 144 568 0 i} 0 ] 144, 564
Bl 064 L] 1] [ ] 841,064
Hon-tax deductible donations
Veluntary incarme
Danations 241 632 L1} i} [} ] 241,832
Sctivities for generating funds
Fund raising incoma 11,217 V] 1] 1] {3 11,217
252 8449 1] [} 0 0 252,84%
1,083,913 1] 1] 0 ] 1,093,513
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B. Donations
2023
Unrestricted
furd Rastricted Munds
Wildlife CF5 - A {8 Total unrestricted
Campaign Vviagotable Regianal and rastrictad
Gemeral Tumd Initiatives Garden Oithesr Puaneds Grankt furds
55 5% 55 55 53 55
Tax deductible donations
Voluntary income
Donations &06 495 a [+ ] 695,495
Sctivities for generating funds
Fund raising incamea 144 569 0 L] 0 144,569
B4l 064 i} 0 i 841,084
Hon-tax deductible donations
Veluntary incarme
Danations 241 632 i} 1] ] 241,532
Activities for generating funds
Fund raising income 11,217 4] 0 {3 11,217
25F B40 [} [} 0 252,845
1,083,913 1] V] [ 1,093,513
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6. Donations (Cont'd)

2022
Unrestricted
fund Restricted funds
Wildlire CF% - AOA ML Tatal unrestricted
Carnpaign Vegetable Regional and restricted
General fund Initiatives Garden Othar funds Grant funds
55 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%
Tax deductible donations
Veluntary incarme
Donations E5F 636 i} L} 0 G577 .635
Activives for generating funds
Fund raising income 7,705 i} o 1] 7.705%
65, 341 1] [V} [1] 655,341
HNon-tax deductible donations
Weluntary ingcome
Donations 170,443 i} 43z 0 170,875
activi ; und
Fund raising incama 12,767 1] 2,000 [1] 14,767
1E3. 210 i} 2,432 1] 185,842
B4E 551 i} 2,432 [1] A50,983
Tha donations waere presented in the statement of financial activities as follows:
2023
55
Voluntary income
- Donations 938,127 B28,511
Activities for generating funds
= Fund raising income 155,786 22,472
1,093,913 B50,383

[uaring the financial year, tha Secicty issued tax-deductible racaipts, for donations totalling S5$8494% 459 (2022, S$667,734) pursuant to its Institutions of a Public

Character {“IPCY) status.
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&. Donations {Cont'd)
2022
Unrestricted
fund Raestricted funds
Wildlire CFS - AR ML Tatal unrestricted
Carnpaign Vegatable Regional and restricted
General fund Initiatives Garden Other funds Grant funds
55 5% 5% SE SE 5
Tax deductible donations
Weluntary incarme
Conations GE7 636 L] i} L] L] 657,636
Activities for generating funds
Fund a_m_z_u incoma F.70s (1] ] [1] [1] 7,705
65, 341 [] 1] L] L] 665,341
Mon-tax deductible donations
Wolurtary incamis
Donations 170,443 L] i} 433 L] 170,875
Activi : fund
Fund raising incamea 12,767 L] 1] 2,000 0 14 767
1EZ 210 [} i} 2,432 L1} 185,642
EWE [} 1] M_hu.u. [1] mm_u._.m__ﬁw
The donations were presented in the statement of financial activities as follows;
2023 2022
L 5%
Voluntary income
- Danations 938,127 B28,511
Activities for generating funds
= Fund raising incoma 155,746 22,473
1093513 mm_“__.m__ﬁw

During the financial year, the Scciety isseed tax-deductible receipts, for donations totalling S4$399 9549 (2022 S$667,734) pursuant o its [Institutions of a Public
Character ("IPC™) status.
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6. Donations (Cont'd)

2022
Unrestricted
fund Restricted funds
Wildlire CF% - AOA ML Tatal unrestricted
Carnpaign Vegetable Regional and restricted
General fund Initiatives Garden Othar funds Grant funds
55 5% 5% 5% 5% 5%
Tax deductible donations
Veluntary incarme
Donations E5F 636 i} L} 0 G577 .635
Activives for generating funds
Fund raising income 7,705 i} o 1] 7.705%
65, 341 1] [V} [1] 655,341
HNon-tax deductible donations
Weluntary ingcome
Donations 170,443 i} 43z 0 170,875
activi ; und
Fund raising incama 12,767 1] 2,000 [1] 14,767
1E3. 210 i} 2,432 1] 185,842
B4E 551 i} 2,432 [1] A50,983
Tha donations waere presented in the statement of financial activities as follows:
2023
55
Voluntary income
- Donations 938,127 B28,511
Activities for generating funds
= Fund raising income 155,786 22,472
1,093,913 B50,383

[uaring the financial year, tha Secicty issued tax-deductible racaipts, for donations totalling S5$8494% 459 (2022, S$667,734) pursuant to its Institutions of a Public

Character {“IPCY) status.
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Animal Concerns Research and Education Society
[UEN. TO1SS0LZ1K]

Audited Firancial Statements
Financial ¥ear Ended 21 March 2023

8. Animal protection programme expanses
2023
Unrastrictad
Tounid Rastrictad Tunds
Tatal
Wildlira CFS - A KL unrestricted
Carnpaign Vegetable Regional and restricted
Note Genaral fund Initiatives Garden Other funds Grank funds
55 54 54 5% 5% b1 ]
Campaigns
Local expenses 4,710 0 0 0 i 4,710
Bank charges 57 il u} o a 57
Salarias 10 92,570 5,332 u} o a 97,902
CPF contributians and SO0 10 14,444 1,432 i [ i} 15,580
Miscellaneous 1,727 0 ] ] i 1,727
113,512 &, T84 0 ] 1 120,276
Education and camrmuniky
olitraach
Lecal expangag 4,016 ] ] 0o 5,086
Salarieg 10 7B, 449 ] ] o &, 440
CPF contributions and SOL 10 11,524 i} i} 0 11,524
Depreciation of proparty,
plant and equipment 13 E5a i} i} ] BE9
PFrojact axpenses 1,138 i} i} ] 1,136
Miscellamesoiis 316 1] 1] 0 316
a5, 202 1] 1] 0 95372
Fidwoia LLP, Pubiic Accoupntants and Charteved Accountants of Singapore Page 2B of 43
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Animal Concerns Research and Education Society
[UEN. TO1SS0LZ1K]

Audited Firancial Statements
Financial ¥ear Ended 21 March 2023

8. Animal protection programme expenses (Cont'd)
2023
Unrestricted
fund Restricbed funds
Tatal
Wilkdlire CFS - SO0 ML unrestricted
Campaign Wegatable Regional and restricted
Mota Ganaral fund Initiatives Garden Cihar fumnds Grant funeds
5% 54 55 55 5% =%
Local expensas 180,033 0 123 ] L] 180,156
Foreign worker levy 10 23,542 0 o i} 0 23,642
Salarias 10 Q07 880 u} 0 i} 0 407 BBO
Staff dewelopmant and training 16 1,050 il 0 ] L] 1,050
CPF cantributiaons and SDL 10 L1507 il L] i L] 51,507
Depreciation of property, plant
and equigmmant 13 22,966 a 0 i 0 22,966
Amartisation of right-of-use
ASEELE 13 14,871 0 L] 0 L] 19,871
Interast expense on lease
labidlitiasg 2,316 u} 1] i} 0 2,316
Miscellamesoiis 3,856 i} [1] i} [1] 3,856
13,121 ] 123 (] )] T13, 244
Total cost of charitable activities 921,835 5,764 123 170 0 928 802
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Animal Concerns Research and Education Society
[UEN. TO1SS0LZ1K]

Audited Firancial Statements
Financial ¥ear Ended 21 March 2023

8. Animal protection programme expenses (Cont'd)

. 2022
Unrestricted
fund Restricted funds
Wikdlire CFS - A KL Total unrestrictad
Campaign ‘Vegetabla Regianal and restricted
Mata Ganaral fund Imitiatives Garden Other funds Grant furds
54 54 5% 5% 5% 5%
Campaigns
Lecal expanses A,087 4 0 0 i} 8,091
Salarias 10 102,674 LI 0 0 i} 102 678
Staff development and
training 10 asy LI i 0 i} 97
CPF contributions and SO0 10 17,802 L 0 0 0 17 802
Dapreciation of property,
plant and agquipment 13 232 LI 0 o i} 232
Miscellameous S5 0 1 1] 1] LEE
130,052 R u] 0 ] 130,056
Education and community sutreach
Lical expangas 4,464 [i] o 1,114 i} 5.57B
Salariag pli] 75,475 1] ] 0 ] TBATS
Stall developmeant and
training 10 G 0 0 0 i} 66
CPF contributions and SOL 10 12,853 LI 0 0 i} 124853
Dapreciation of prapearty,
plant and aguiprment 13 10,300 1] ] 0 ] 10,300
Project expenses 2,793 1] fi 1] 4] 2,703
Miscellameous 08 0 0 18 1] 926
107,859 [1] 0] 1,132 1] 108 201

Fidwoia LLP, Pubiic Accountants and Charteved Accountants of Singapore Page 20 of 43
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Animal Concerns Research and Education Society
[UEN. TO1SS0LZ1K]

Audited Firancial Statements
Financial ¥ear Ended 21 March 2023

8. Animal protection programme expenses (Cont'd)

20EE
Unrestricted
e Rastrichad funds
wildlife CFs - AEA KL Total unrestrichad
Campaign Vegatable Regianal and restricted
Moke General fund Initiativas Garden Other funds Grant Turnds
55 55 5% 5% k43
Local expenses 178,868 0 2F4 0 221 179, 363
Foraign waorker levy 10 24,254 i i i 0 Fd 54
Salaries 10 374,838 0 0 i ] 374, E5B
Stall developmeant and
raining 10 40 o o a u} 49
CPF cantributions and STL 10 a4F OFF o o a [u} 47 077
Depreciation of proparty,
plant and equipmaent 13 15597 0 0 0 1,177 17,156
Amartisation of right-of-use
agsar 13 19,837 o o a u} 19, E37
Interast axpense on lease labilities 3,361 0 0 i 0 3361
Miscellamsous 4,951 o o o] [u] 4. 901
659 274 O 274 o] 1.398 &70, 046
Total cost of charitable activities 907, 185 4 A4 1,132 1,398 6 593
Fidwoia LLP, Pubiic Accountants and Charteved Accountants of Singapore Page 2] of 43
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Animal Concerns Research and Education Society
[UEN. TO1SS0LZ1K]

Audited Firancial Statements
Financial ¥ear Ended 21 March 2023

9. Administrative axpenses

2023
Unrestricted
furid Regtricted fumnds
Tatal
Wildlife Al XL unrestricted
Campaign  CF5 - Vegetabla Reagianal and rastrictad
Mote General fund Initigtives Gardearn Othear funds Grant furnds
55 5% 11 5§ 5% 5%

Accounting fee 24,743 a i u} ] 24,743
Audit fea 4,536 i 0 0 0 B.R36
Bank charges 14,620 a i o u] 14,620
CPF contributions and SO0 10 7393 i i} 0 0 7303

Dapreciation of property, plant and
equipment 13 82, 500 0 0 0 0 B2,500
Amartisation of reinstatement cost 25,7 1% i i} 0 0 A9.7149
Madical axpenses 86 i i} 0 0 386
Mizcellaneous axpenses 3,945 a i} 1, E13 o 11,762
Salariag 10 33,471 a i o ] 38471
Staff develpmant and training 10 15 i 1] 1] fi 15
Telecommunications G50 i 1] 0 0 EL]
217,250 1 ] 1,813 1 219,103
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Animal Concerns Research and Education Society
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Audited Financial Statements
Financial ¥ear Ended 31 March 2023

9. Administrative expenses {Cont'd)

20z
Unrastrictad
Tuined Begtricted fonds
Malta Takal
Wildlifa A4 XL unrastriched
Campaign  CFS - Vegetable Regional and restricted
Ganeral Mund Initiatives Gardan Othar Tunds Grant furids
55 55 55 55 55 55
Accounting fae 30,559 i} i} i} u} 30,552
Audit fea 4,174 i} i} (] ] S,174
Bank charges 7.3EB i} i} i} i} 7,348
CPF contributions and 500 10 8,141 i} i} 1] i 8,141
Depreciation of progerty, plant
and equipmaent 13 B3 70 (] (] i ] 153,720
‘Written off of property plant and
rouipment 13 G ] ] i i CE]
Amortisation of reinstatament
cosk 31,279 i} i} i} u} 31,27
Medical expansas 200 i} ] i} u} 200
Miscellanepous axpenses 11,040 ] 4] L il 11,340
Salaries 10 46,166 i} i} (] i 4, 166
Stall develspment and training 10 33 ] ] 4] a 33
Talecarmmunications 1,434 1] i} 1] [u} 1,434
225,186 o ] 300 a 229,488
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Animal Concerns Research and Edwcation Society
[UEN. Ta1550121K]

Audited Financial Statements
Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

10, Staff costs

2023 2022
5% 5%
Salaries and bonuses B20,702 &00, 177
CPF contributions and SDL 86,304 BE.E73
Foreign worker levy 23,642 24,554
Staff dewvelopment and training 1,065 E45
731,713 711,149

ey, i

The staff costs were allocated as follows:
Cost of charitable activities

- Campaigns 113,782 121,177
= Education and community outreach 87,4873 B9,.394
= Wildlife rescue 484,079 446,238
Administrative expenses 45 B79 C4. 340

731,713 711,149

——— —————

11. Cash and cash equivalents

2023 2022
5% 5%
Cash on hand 14,506 i
Cash at bank 1,376,612 1,087, 342

1,391,118 1,087,342

s ]

At the reporting date, the camrying amounts of cash and cash eguivalents approximate their fair
values.

12. Fee and other receivables

2023 2022
Mote =1 =1
Fee receivables
Programme fee 2,500 14,100
Other receivables
Deposits 39,293 47,263
Donation receivables 14,393 0
Other assats 1,040 a
Contract assets 5 2,410 4]
Prepayments 21,358 S.r4l
Sundry receivables &80 4]
B1.674 &7,.104

Fee receivables are uwnsecured, non-imterest bearing and are normally settle on 30 days”
(2022: 30 days") term.

Thare is no other class of financial assets that is past due and/for impaired.

AL the reporting date, the carrying amounts of fee and other receivables approximate their fair values.
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Animal Concerns Research and Education Society
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Audited Financial Statements
Financial Year Ended 21 March 2023

13. Property, plant and equipmeant

Furniture
Mokar Office and Quarantine Right-of- Renowation Renstatement
wehicles aquipment fiactures assets w58 assats cost Ccost Tatal

=5 5 58 54 =4 54 54 1
Cost
&b 31 March 2021 193,000 39,308 21,673 9981 110,787 1] 650,000 1,034,689
Additons 12,452 12,763 (i} 4,976 ] (i} 1| 30,201
wntten off 0] (9 _8E5) (1,197 {1,926} 0 1] 0 {13,008}
At 31 March 2022 205,462 42,186 20476 13,001 110,757 1] 6a0,000 1,051,882
addibons o 0 o o 59,385 83,650 nl 68,015
Disposal {103,000 (1] 0 1] 1] (1] 1] {103,000%
At 31 March 2023 102,462 42,186 20,476 13,001 170,122 8,650 860,000 1,016,897
Accumulated depreciation
&b 31 March 2021 128,502 30,033 20,278 9.951 39.674 1] 2,500 311,028
Depreciation charge

19,5497 7.5942 540 d30 19,837 i} 82,500 131,245
Written off (1] {9,885} {1,197} [1,925) 1] (1] 1] {13,008}
&b 31 March 2022 148,189 28,090 19,621 E.8585 59,511 1] 165,000 429,266
Cepreciation charge 13,419 J.A86 540 1.659 19,871 721 d2.500 126,196
Disposal {103,000} (] (] 0 ] (] 0 {103,000}
At 31 March 2023 58,608 35,576 20,161 10,514 79,382 721 247 500 452 462
Carrylng amount
31 March 2022 57273 14,096 g55 4.146 51,246 [1] 495 000 522 616
31 March 2023 ____.wl_.wm.n m_m._._..._. 315 W._nmw m_uru____.n_ u.._m_ﬁ h__.“_.M_mn__“_ mm_.n_.aum

Curing the financial year, the Society acquired property, plant and equipment with an aggregate cost of 588,650 (2022; 5£30,201}. Cash payments of
548,650 (2022: 5530,201) were made to purchase property, plant and eguipment. This included S$NIL (2022: 5%3,130) donations received from donors

for the sponsor on the acquisition of equipment as disclosed in Mote 15.

; ired under leasi _

Right-of-use assets acquired under leasing arrangements are presented separately under the category, "Right-of-use assets". Details of the leased assets

are disclosed in Mote 17.

Fidwels LLP, Public Acoountanis and Charfered Accountants of Singapors
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Animal Concerns Research and Education Sociaty
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Audired Financia! Sfalemants
Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

13. Property, plant and equipment {Cont'd}

The breakdown of deprediation charges are as follows:

Under General Fund:

Cost of charitable activities

= Campaigns

= Education and community outreach
= Wildlife rescue

Administrative expenses

14, Other payables

Current liabilities

&ccrued expenses

Prowvision for unutilised leaves
Other payables

Mon=current liabilities
Prowvision for reinstatement costs

2023 2022
5% 55
0 232
859 10,300
42 837 36,994
82,500 83,720
126,196 131,246
2023 2022
55 St
31,080 31,601
48,673 26,542
6,918 17,995
86,671 76,138
532,216 502,497
618,887 578,635

—_———le s

At the reporting date, the carrying amounts of other payables approximate their fair values.

15. Defarred capital grants

Current
Mon-current

&t beginning of finandal yvear
Deferred capital grants received
Amortisation of deferred capital grants

At end of fimancial yvear

2023 2022
5% 5%
11,287 14,109
26,661 37,949
37,948 52,058
2023 2022
1.4 53
52,058 72,139
1] 3,130
{14,110) {23,211)
37,948 52,058

Dwring the financial year ended 31 March 2022, the Society received donations amounting to
553,130 for the sponsorship in purchass of 2 units brand new Rcom bird brooder and used TLC-
S0 intemsive care unit for wildlife purpose. The cost of office equipment have been capitalised
under property, plant and eguipment as disclosed in Mote 13.

Fiducia LLE, Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants of Singapare

Page 36 oF 43



DesuSign Envelopa [0 BSEGE4AD-BATE-4AIF-AT E4-44854 BOLDIE0L

Animal Concerns Research and Education Sociaty
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Audited Financial Slalamants
Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

16.

i7.

Defarred income

Im 2022, this relates to donations received for the rescue van = GBFBSS0E. This deferred income
is to recognised as income in subseguent accounting periods when the maintenance expenses
incurred for the rescue van.

Im 2023, the Society received donations for the rescue van, renowvation of the Bird Block, trolleys
and food for animal care and animal food vouchers. This deferred income is to recognised as
income in subseguent accounting perods when the related expenses is imcurred.

There are fuel charges amounting S$10,000 (2022 545007, renovation expenses amounting to
SE8,920 (2022 5%NIL) and miscellanecus charges for animal feod and care and maintenance
amounting to 552,388 (2022: 554,821} and thess were utilised against the deferred income
acoount.

2023 2022
5% 5%
AL beginning of financal year 1,358 0
Deferred income received 31,053 5,679
Utilisabion of deferred income (21,308} {5,321)
&t end of fimancial vear 11,103 1,358
Lease liabilities
2023 2022
54 54
Current 18,648 20,516
Mon-=currant 75 448 34 764
94 096 55,280
2023 2022
Amount recognised in profit or loss: 5% 5%
Diepraciation of right-of-use assets 19,871 19,837
Interest expense on lease liabilities 2316 3.361
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 22,187 23,198
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Audired Financia! Sfalemants
Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Lease liabilitias {Cont'd)

Total cash cutflows:

Dwring the financial year, the Socety had total cash outflows for leases of 5822 865 (2022
S£22.830).

A reconciliation of labilities arising from financing activities are as follows:

Mon-cash changes

1 April Cash Accretion 31 March
2022 &ddition flows of interests Other 2023
5% 55 5% 5% =1 5%
Liabilities
Lease liabilities
= current 20,516 0 [22,B55) 2,316 18,681 18,648
= nxn=current 34,764 549,365 Q Q (18,681 75,448
Mon-cash changes
1 April Cash Accretion 31 March
2021 &ddition flows of interests Other 2022
5% 55 5% 5% =1 5%
Liabilities
| liabiliti
= current 19,4649 (i} (22,830} 3361 20,516 20,516
= mon-current 55,280 V] 0 0 (20,516 34,764

General Fund

The General Fund are expendable at the discretion of the Management Committee in furtherance
of the Sodety’s ocbjects and purposes.

Wildlife campaign initiatives (Mandai Mature)

Mandai Mature is a non-profit wildlife conservation organization. Its aim is to be the trusted
conservation organizabion in Asia to conserve wildlife and their habitats while benefiting people.
The grant was given to ACRES to fund "Our ‘Wild Meighbours" initiative.

Cur Wild Neighbours {OWN) is the first joint initiative amongst multiple stakehalders to promote
coexistence with wildlife in Singapore. The initiative aims to promote human-wildlife coexistence,
equip the public with wildlife etigquette, and raise awareness about wildlife rescue, rehabilitation
and release afforts in Singapore.

CF5 = Vegetable Garden

This fund is a donation from the Community Foundation of Singapore. It is used for the ACRES
Vegetable Garden and plants for enclosures.

AXA XL Regional Grant

This fund is from the AXA XL Regional Grants Program. It is to be used for the following: (i) to

erect sturdy custom-designed cutdoor endosures to create an iguana sanctuary; and {ii) volunteer
training and educational talks for AXA XL staff members.

Fiducia LLE, Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants of Singapare
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Audited Financial! Slalamants
Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

22, Related party transactions

{a) Related party transactions and balances

Thare was no transaction between the Society and related party for the financial years ended 31

March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

{b) Key management personnel compensation

The remuneration of key management personnel compensation for the financial year was as

follows:
2023 2022
1] 5%
Executives' remuneration
Salaries, allowance and bonuses 104,549 110,023
CPF and SDL contributions 17,736 18,967
122 285 128, 9490

Mumber of key personnel

Mo. of executives of the Scciety in remuneration
bands:
= Below S5$100,000 2

2

At the reporting date, none of the Management Committees received any remuneration from the

Socieby.

As at the reporting dake, the Society has an average number of staff of 23 [2022: 22).

23. Financial instruments

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities at amortised costs at the reporting date

are as follows:

2023 2022
55 55
Financial assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 1,391,118 1,087 342
Fee and other receivables {excluding
prepayments) 60,316 51,363
1,451,434 1,148,705
Financial liakilities
Other payables 518,887 C78.635
Lease liabilicies g4 096 L5, 280
712,983 633,915
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24.

24.1

24.2

Financial risk managemamnt

The Society is mainly exposed to credit risk, interest rate risk, and liguidity risk.

Risk management is carried out under policies approved by the Manmagement Committee. The
Management Committee reviews and agrees on policies and procedures for management of these
risks.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual chbligation, resulting
im financial loss to the Socieby.

i Risk managemsant

The Society adopts the following policy to mitigate the credit risk.

For banks and finandal institutions, the Society mitigates its oredit risks by transacting
only with a counterparty who are rated "A™ and above by independent rating agencies.

The Society has no significant concentration of credit risk.

i Impairment of financial assets
The Society does not expect to inour materal credit losses on their risk management of
financial assets.

Finanmcial assets that are neither past due nor impaired are mainly deposits with banks
with high credit ratings assigned by intermnational credit-rating agencies.

There are no credit loss allowance for financial assets at amortised cost as at 31 March
2023 and 2022.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Society will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations
due to shortage of funds. The Society exposure to liguidity risk arises primarily from mis-matchas
of the maturities of financial assets or liabilities.

Mamagemsent menitors and ensures that the Socety maintains a level of cash and cash eguivalents
deemed adeguate to finance the Society's operations.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Society's financial assets and liabilities at
the end of the reporting period based on the contractual undiscounted repayment obligations:

Later tham onsa
vear but not

Within one later tham five
yWear Years Total
5 55 5%
2023
Financlal assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 1,391,118 0 1,391,118
Fee and other receivables {excluding
prepayments) 60,318 1] 60,318
1,451,434 0 1,451,434
Financlal llabkilities
Other payables {8B.671) [5832,215) {818,837
Lease liabilities (23,043} (82,570) {105,613)
(109,714) (514, 786) {724,500
Net financlal assets/{liabilities) 1,341,720 (614, 786) 726,934
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24.

24.2

24.3

Financial risk management [Comnt'd)
Liguidity risk {Cont'd)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Society's financial assets and liabilities at
the end of the reporting pericd based on the contractual undiscounted repayment obligations:
[Cont'd)

Later tham ona
vear but not

Within one later tham five
Waar Years Total
=E ] 55 5%
2022
Fimancial assets
Cash and cash eqguivalents 1087, 342 0 1087 342
Fee and other receivables (exduding
prepayments) 61,363 1] 61,363
1,148,705 0 1,148,705
Fimancial liakilities
Uther payvables {76,138) (502,497 (578,635}
Lease liabilities {22,829 {36,140 (58,9768
(98,967 (538,644) (637,611}
MNet financial assets/(liakilities) 1,049, 735 (53K 644 511,094

Interest rate risk

Imterest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Socieby’s financial
imstruments will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Society's exposure to
interest rate risk arises primarily from their bormowing.

The Society does not expect any significant effect on the Society's profit or loss arising from the
effects of reasonably possible changes to interest rates on interest bearing financial instruments
at the end of the fimancial year.

Sensitivi lysis for | te ris}

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Society's imterest-bearing financial
instruments was as follows:

2023 2022
5% 5%
Fixed rate instruments
E Lliabiliti
L=asze liabilities Q4,096 55,280

The sensitivity analysis is based on changes in the interest rates of variable mate financial
instruments.

Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk is not presented as the Society do not hawe significant
exposure to market risk for changes in interest rate.

At the reporting date, the Society does not hawve wariable rate interest-bearing financial
instruments.
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Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

25, Fair values

As at 31 March 2023, the carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities recorded in the
financial statements of the Society approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature.

The fair walues of nom=current financial liabilities carried at amortised cost are estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available
ta the Society for similar financial liabilities.

285. Fund raising expenses

2023 2022
MNote 5% 5%
Total fund raising income and sponsorship =] 155,786 22,472
Total direct costs of fund raising expenses 35,857 615
Percentage of direct fund raising expenses
owver fund raising income and sponsorshio 23% 3%

27, Management of conflict of interest

Dwrimg the current and previcus financial yvear, none of the Managament Committee received any
remuneration from the Socdety.

Management Committee are required to disclose any interest that they may have, whether directly
or indirectly, that the Socety may enter into or in any organisations that the Society has dealings
with or is considering dealing with; and any personal interest accruing to him as one of the
Society's supplier, user of services or beneficiary. Should there be any potential conflict of interest,
the affected membars may not vote on the issue that was the subject matter of the disclosure.
Detailed minutes will be taken on disclosure as well as the basis for armiving at the final decision
in relation to the issue at stake.

28. Reserve position and policy

The Society's reserve position (excuding non-current assets) for financial ye=ar ended
31 March 2023 and 2022 are as follows:
2023 2022 Increase)
(decrease]
5£000 5&£000 [
A Unrestrictad Fund
General Fund 1,209 1,082 12%;
B Restricted Funds
Wildlife Campaian Initiatives 59 [i] 100%
CFS - Vegetable Garden 0 ] M
Other Funds & [+ 0%
AXA ¥L Reglonal Grant 1 1 0%
C Endowment Fund MNAA MR MSA
D Total Furnds 1,275 1,089 17%
E Total Annual Operating Expendiburs 1,184 1,140 4%
F Ratie of Funds to Annoeal Operating Expenditure
[ASE) 1.02 0.95
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Financial Year Ended 31 March 2023

29.

30.

31.

Reserve position and policy (Cont'd)

Raferance!

C. An endowment fund consists of assats, funds or properties, which are hald In perpetulty, which
produce annual inceme flow for a foundation te spend as grants.,

D. Total Funds include wnrestricted, restrictedy designated and endowment funds.

E. Total Annual Operating Expenditure Includes expenses related to Cost of Generating Funds, Cost of
Charitable Activities and Governance and Administration costs.

The Society’s Reserve Policy is as follows:

The reserves of the Society provide financial stability and the means for the development of the
Society's activities. The Management Committee intends to maintain the reserves at a lavel
sufficient for its operating mesds. The Soceby reviews the level of reserves regulary for the
Society's continuing obligations.

Impact of Covid=-19 {Coronavirus Disease)

Management has not identified any material uncertainties resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic
and the aftermath of the pandemic surrounding the Company’s business and operations. The
ongaing and evolving COVID-1% pandemic, together with the adverse impacts on global and local
economies, hawve heightemed the estimation uncertainties, including but not limited to any
estimated credit losses. The related impact may be further reflected in the Company's financial
statements for the fimnancial vear ending 31 March 2024.

MNotwithstanding this, the management has assessed that the gaing concern basis of preparation
for this sat of financial statements remains appropriate. The Board of Directors is continuously
monitoring the COVIL-19 pandemic situation and will take further action as necessary in response
ta the economic and service disruption.

Authorisation of financial statements

The financial statements for the financial yvear ended 21 March 2023 were authorised for issus in
accordance with a resolution of the Management Committee of the Socieby on 4 September 2023.
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